AMENDMENT NO. 1 CBE NO. 606134-22 EMERGENCY SHELTER PROGRAM

THIS AMENDMENT is made and entered into this _____ day of _____2023, by and between CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA (hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY"), and HOPELINK OF SOUTHERN NEVADA (hereinafter referred to as "SUBRECIPIENT").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the parties entered into an agreement under CBE Number 606134-22, entitled "Emergency Shelter Program" dated April 12, 2022 (hereinafter referred to as CONTRACT); and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to amend the CONTRACT.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree to amend the CONTRACT as follows:

1. Witnesseth: Page 1, Paragraph 1

Originally written:

WHEREAS, SUBRECIPIENT has the personnel and resources necessary to accomplish the PROJECT within the required schedule and with a budget allowance not to exceed \$892,650, including all travel, lodging, meals and miscellaneous expenses; and

Revised to read:

WHEREAS, SUBRECIPIENT has the personnel and resources necessary to accomplish the PROJECT within the required schedule and with a budget allowance not to exceed the amount outlined in Exhibit A, Scope of Work, including all travel, lodging, meals and miscellaneous expenses; and

2. Section I: Page 1, Term of Contract

Originally written:

COUNTY agrees to retain SUBRECIPIENT for the period from January 1, 2022 through September 30, 2022. During this period, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to provide services as required by COUNTY within the scope of this Contract.

Revised to read:

COUNTY agrees to retain SUBRECIPIENT for the period from January 1, 2022 through September 30, 2022, with the option to renew for 4, one-year periods subject to the provisions of Sections II and VIII herein. During this period, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to provide services as required by COUNTY within the scope of this Contract.

3. Section II: Page 1, Item A – Compensation

Originally written:

COUNTY agrees to pay SUBRECIPIENT for the performance of services described in the Scope of Work (Exhibit A) for the not-to-exceed amount of \$892,650. COUNTY'S obligation to pay SUBRECIPIENT cannot exceed the not-to-exceed amount. It is expressly understood that the entire work defined in Exhibit A must be completed by SUBRECIPIENT and it shall be SUBRECIPIENT'S responsibility to ensure that hours and tasks are properly budgeted, so the entire PROJECT is completed for the said fee.

Revised to read:

COUNTY agrees to pay SUBRECIPIENT for the performance of services described in the Scope of Work (Exhibit A) for the not-to-exceed amount of \$4,492,650. COUNTY'S obligation to pay SUBRECIPIENT cannot exceed the not-to-exceed amount. It is expressly understood that the entire work defined in Exhibit A must be completed by SUBRECIPIENT and it shall be SUBRECIPIENT'S responsibility to ensure that hours and tasks are properly budgeted, so the entire PROJECT is completed for the said fee.

- 4. Exhibit A, Scope of Work and all Attachments to be removed in its entirety and will be replaced by revised Exhibit A, Scope of Work with Attachments 1 through 6 contained in this Amendment No. 1.
- 5. The revisions contained herein are effective as of October 1, 2022.

This Amendment No. 1 represents an increase of \$3,600,000.

Except as expressly amended herein, the terms and conditions of the CONTRACT shall remain in full force and effect.

COUNTY:		SUBRECIPIENT:	
COUNTY OF CLARK, NEVADA		HOPELINK OF SOUTHERN NEVADA	
Ву:	JESSICA COLVIN Chief Financial Officer	By: Stacey Lockhart STACEY LOCKHART Executive Director	

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

STEVEN B. WOLFSON, District Attorney

By: ELIZABETH VIBERT
Deputy District Attorney

EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF WORK Revised per Amendment No. 1

HOPELINK OF SOUTHERN NEVADA A NEVADA CORPORATION EMERGENCY SHELTER PROGRAM

I. Overview

COUNTY receives funds under the Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) Program of the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) CFDA# 14.231, as authorized by the Stewart B. McKinney Homeless Assistance Act of 1987 (Pub.L. 100-77), the Stewart B. McKinney Homeless Assistance Amendments Act of 1988 (Pub.L. 100-628), the Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act of 1990 (Pub.L. 101-625), the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act of 2009 (HEARTH Act) (S. 896), and HUD's ESG regulations in 24 CFR Part 576, as Interim Rule and the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) CFDA 14.218 (state CDBG-CV) and 14.228 (CDBG-CV Federal) under the Housing Community Development Act of 1974, P.L. 93-383. The purpose of these grant programs is designed to identify sheltered and unsheltered homeless persons, as well as those at risk of homelessness, and provide services necessary to help those persons quickly regain stability in permanent housing after experiencing a housing crisis and/or homelessness. The COUNTY, as an Entitlement Grantee for these grant programs, is responsible for the administration, implementation, planning, and evaluation within its respective jurisdiction of the grant program and for the HUD Consolidated Plan (the Plan).

The services which are funded by these grant programs must benefit homeless individuals and families or individuals and families at imminent risk of homelessness within the respective jurisdiction of the COUNTY, and in accordance with Attachment 1 – Direct Service Income Eligibility attached hereto and incorporated herein as if fully set forth, for reference in determining the applicability of these funds based on HUD Section 8 Income guidelines and fair market rent under the relevant HUD regulations, requirements, and guidelines.

The COUNTY was awarded Emergency Solutions Grant Coronavirus (ESG-CV) funds by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development on January 26 (Grant #E-20-DW-32- 0001, CFDA # 14.231) and Community Development Block Grant Coronavirus (CDBG-CV) funds by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development on January 26 (Grant #B-20—UW-32-0001, CFDA 14.228) for the purpose of preventing, preparing, and responding to COVID-19. HOPELINK of SOUTHERN NEVADA, ("SUBRECIPIENT") DUNS#137358391, a Nevada non-profit corporation created for religious, charitable, or educational purposes as defined by NRS 244.1505 and NRS 372.3261, located at 178 Westminster Way, Henderson NV 89015, proposes to support emergency shelter services operations (the "PROGRAM"). PROGRAM special conditions and waivers are outlined in Attachment 6 - ESG-CV Special Conditions and Waivers and Attachment 7 - CDBG-CV Special Conditions and Waivers.

Pursuant to NRS 244.1505 the Board of County Commissioners may expend money for any purpose which will provide a substantial benefit to the inhabitants of COUNTY or grant money to a private organization, not for profit, to be expended for the selected purpose.

II. Scope of Work

COUNTY will administer County grant funds to assist with the cost of operating an Emergency Shelter Program in accordance with 24 CFR 576.400, Subpart E, Program Written Standards Requirements as outlined in Attachment 4 – Southern Nevada ESG Written Standards, housing-focused environments that promote engagement in housing-stability planning, and provide a variety of resources for clients to further their progress toward attaining housing.

SUBRECIPIENT will provide Emergency Shelter aimed at reducing unsheltered homelessness in Southern Nevada and is designed to offer services to our homeless households through the provision of housing crisis resolution services and emergency shelter during the entire year. All services must be easily accessible and evaluated for effectiveness on a regular basis. Emergency Shelter will be provided to households experiencing homelessness free of charge and with reasonable restrictions on the length of stay for the entire contract period.

SUBRECIPIENT will provide shelter and safe respite from the streets for 333 individuals. The goal is to end homelessness: permanently resolving housing crisis, facilitating self-resolution, rehousing people quickly, reducing unsheltered homelessness, decreasing the number of frequent users of shelters, creating better system flow, connecting people to coordinated entry, providing housing navigation services, and connecting people to other resources to help stabilize them once housed.

SUBRECIPIENT will provide, in accordance with 24 CFR 576.400, Subpart E, PROGRAM Requirements, assistance to homeless individuals and households in obtaining:

- A. Appropriate supportive services, including housing navigation, medical health treatment, mental health treatment, counseling, supervision, employment, education, youth programs, and other services essential for achieving independent living; and
- B. Other federal, state, local, and private assistance available for such individuals.

As grant funds are to be used to assist with emergency shelter services, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to meet the conditions set forth by 24 CFR 576.102, including the following:

- A PROGRAM participants receiving emergency shelter assistance must meet the definition of "homeless" as defined under 24 CFR.576.2, under paragraphs (1), (2), (3), and (4); and
- B. Eligible activities under the Emergency Shelter Component, 24 CFR 576.102, are as follows: essential services, case management, child care, education services, employment assistance and job training, outpatient health services, legal services, life skills training, mental health services, substance abuse treatment services, transportation, services for special populations, shelter renovation, shelter operations, and assistance required under the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (URA); and
- C. If all or a portion of grant funding is used by SUBRECIPIENT for an emergency shelter or services for families with children under 18, the age of a child under 18 must not be used as a basis of denying any family's admissions to the SUBRECIPIENT'S emergency shelter.

SUBRECIPIENT will collect and input data on clients assisted with grant funds into the Homeless Management Information System (HMIS). If an assisted household refuses to consent to the inputting of client-level data into the HMIS, SUBRECIPIENT shall enroll the household using anonymous client identifiers and enter services and notes accordingly into HMIS.

SUBRECIPIENT will provide monthly performance reports on Attachment 2 - Performance Measurement Monthly Report. These reports contain outcome measures for the target population and the number served.

SUBRECIPIENT will provide PROGRAM progress reports to COUNTY on a quarterly basis which shall be submitted as per the format and instructions found on Attachment 3 – Quarterly Progress Report to Clark County. These reports will contain, but are not limited to, the following data regarding PROGRAM participants and target population:

- A. Maintenance of shelter spaces available each quarter.
- B. Total number of unduplicated clients served during the quarter.
- C. Number of people stably housed or with increased income.
- D. Number of clients connected to other services; and
- E. SUBRECIPIENT'S or PROGRAM's progress toward achieving the objectives outlined.

SUBRECIPIENT will ensure that all client demographic data is entered into HMIS in real-time and will frequently review the HUD report [HUDX-228] ESG CAPER report in HMIS to ensure minimal error rates and manage the frequency of usage of the Data Not Collected fields.

SUBRECIPIENT shall establish procedures to ensure the confidentiality of victims of family violence, in accordance with Section 832(e)(2)(c) of the Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act (Pub.L. 101-625), and Section 605 of the Violence Against Women Act prohibiting the disclosure of personally identifying information about any client of a Victim Service Provider. A Victim Service Provider is a nonprofit organization whose primary mission is to provide services to victims of domestic violence, dating

violence, sexual assault, or stalking.

SUBRECIPIENT shall involve, to the maximum extent possible, homeless individuals and families or formerly homeless individuals and families in constructing, renovating, maintaining, and operating the facilities used by the PROGRAM, in providing services for occupants of these facilities, and if possible in the policy and decision making process of providing these services in accordance with Section 1402(b) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1992 (Pub.L. 102-550) and 24 CFR 576.405. If homeless or formerly homeless individuals or families are not able to participate, SUBRECIPIENT shall develop and implement a plan to involve a homeless or formerly homeless person.

SUBRECIPIENT shall establish a formal process to terminate assistance to any individual or family participant who violates PROGRAM requirements; such formal process shall recognize the rights of individuals affected and may include a hearing.

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with non-discrimination and equal opportunity practices as delineated in 24 CFR 576.407, including the provision of interpretive services for persons who are limited in their English proficiency. The requirements in 24 CFR part 5, subpart A including the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity requirements at 24 CFR 5.105(a), Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, 12 U.S.C. 1701u, and implementing regulations at 24 CFR part 135 apply, except that homeless individuals have priority over other Section 3 residents in accordance with 24 CFR 576.405(c).

The COUNTY will monitor the performance of the SUBRECIPIENT against goals and performance standards as stated above. Substandard performance as determined by COUNTY will constitute noncompliance with this Contract. If action to correct such substandard performance is not taken by the SUBRECIPIENT within a reasonable period of time after being notified by COUNTY, Contract suspension or termination procedures will be initiated, and any grant funds received are subject to recapture. SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges these funds are not to be used for research and development activities.

III. General Conditions

Victim Service Providers providing services to victims of domestic violence shall not disclose personally identifying information, including: (i) a first or last name; (ii) a home or other physical address; (iii) contact information, including a P.O. Box, e-mail or internet protocol address; (iv) a social security number; or (v) any other information, including date of birth, racial or ethnic background, or religious affiliation that, in any combination with other non-personally identifying information, may serve to identify any individual.

SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that data inputted into the community HMIS system is complete and accurate and shall maintain a Data Quality Standard of 95% or better.

SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that the HMIS system has current information concerning SUBRECIPIENT'S funded services, including housing inventory, and the eligibility criteria for client participation, such that other HMIS users can use the Eligibility Screen filters to make informed and accurate referrals.

SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain client data demonstrating client eligibility (including clients deemed ineligible for the PROGRAM) for services provided and retain such client data as well as all financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all other records pertinent to this Contract for a minimum period of five (5) years and up to a period of ten (10) years, depending on grant funding components which grant funds were used to document compliance with the provisions of 24 CFR 576.500(y).

SUBRECIPIENT will maintain records for five (5) years for each individual and family determined ineligible to receive COVID-19 grant funds for Emergency Shelter assistance. The record must include documentation of the reason for that determination and demographic data (race, age, gender, and national origin).

IV. Federal General Conditions

- A. SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with the following laws and directives:
 - 1. The Hatch Act as set forth in Title 5, Chapter 15, of the United States Code.
 - 2. The National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (NEPA), and the related authorities listed in

- HUD's implementing regulations issued at 24 CFR, Parts 50 and 58.
- 3. Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, Pub.L. 90 284.
- 4. Section 109 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, Pub. L. 93-383, and implementing regulations issued at 24 CFR, Part 6.
- 5. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, (42 U.S.C. 2000d-2000d-4), and implementing regulations issued at 24 CFR, Part 1.
- 6. The Fair Housing Act (42 U.S.C. 3601-20), any amendments thereto, and implementing regulations issued at 24 CFR Part 100.
- 7. Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, 12 U.S.C. 1701u, any amendments thereto, and the regulations of HUD with respect to that Act, including 24 CFR, Part 135.
- 8. Executive Order 11063, any amendments thereto, and implementing regulations issued at 24 CFR, Part 107.
- Executive Order 13166 concerning improving the accessibility of services to eligible Limited English-Proficient (LEP) persons, and any amendments thereto.
- 10. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 6101-07), and implementing regulations issued at 24 CFR Part 146.
- 11. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794), and implementing regulations issued at 24 CFR, Part 8. For purposes of the grant program, the term "dwelling units" in 24 CFR, Part 8, shall include sleeping accommodations.
- 12. Executive Order 11246, and the regulations issued under the Order at 41 CFR, Chapter 60.
- 13. The Federal Labor Standards Act.
- 14. The Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, as amended.
- 15. National Flood Insurance Program and the regulations thereunder (44 CFR, Parts 59 through 79), and Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (42 U.S.C. 4001).
- 16. Sections 302 and 401(b) of the Lead Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 4821-4846), and implementing regulations issued at 24 CFR, Part 35, and, in addition, appropriate action must be taken to protect shelter occupants from the hazards associated with lead-based paint abatement procedures.
- 17. The Davis Bacon Act, as amended, does not apply to the Emergency Solutions Grant program.
- 18. 24 CFR, Part 576, of the Stewart B. McKinney Homeless Assistance Act of 1987, revised under the Stewart B. McKinney Homeless Assistance Amendments Act of 1988, and most recently updated under Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing (HEARTH) Act of 2009, Emergency Solutions Grant Program Interim Rule (2012).
- Section 904 of the Stewart B. McKinney Homeless Assistance Amendments Act of 1988 (42 U.S.C. 3544), as amended by Section 903 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1992, Pub. L. 102-550, approved October 28, 1992 (1992 HCD Act), and Section 3003 of the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1993, Pub. L. 103-66, approved August 10, 1993.
- 20. 24 CFR, Part 92, of the Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act of 1990.
- 21. 24 CFR, Part 24, Subpart F of the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988.
- 22. 2 CFR Part 200, outlining the procurement requirements for nonprofit organizations. Should a contractor be hired to carry out any of the project activities, the contractor must be selected through a competitive procurement process in accordance with 2 CFR 2 CFR 200.317-326. In cases not covered by 2 CFR 200.317-326 the regulations at 24 CFR 576.57(d) governing conflict-of-interest apply.
- 23. Section 319 of Pub. L. 101 121, of the Department of the Interior Appropriations Act, which prohibits the use of appropriated Federal funds for lobbying the Executive or Legislative Branches of the Federal Government in connection with a specific contract, grant, or loan, and requires that no Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- 24. To the extent that they are otherwise applicable, SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with:
 - a. Executive Order 11246, as amended by Executive Orders 11375, 11478, 12086, and 12107 (3 CFR 1964-1965 Comp. P. 339; 3 CFR, 1966-1970 Comp., p. 264 (Equal Employment Opportunity), and Executive Order 13279 (Equal Protection of the Laws for Faith-Based and Community Organizations), 67 FR 77141; and the implementing

- regulations at 41 CFR Chapter 60; and
- b. Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 (12 U.S.C. 1701u) and implementing regulations at 24 CFR part 135.
- 25. Faith-based Activities: Organizations that are religious or faith-based are eligible to participate in the ESG-CV and CDBG-CV program, within the following guidelines:
 - a. SUBRECIPIENTS may not engage in inherently religious activities, such as worship, religious instruction, or proselytization, as defined in 24 CFR 570.200(j), as part of the programs or services funded under this part;
 - b. If a SUBRECIPIENT conducts such activities, the activities must be offered separately, in time or location, from the programs or services funded in this Contract, and participation must be voluntary for the beneficiaries of the COVID-19 grant funded programs or services;
 - c. SUBRECIPIENT shall not, in providing program assistance, discriminate against a program beneficiary or prospective program beneficiary based on religion or religious belief.
- 26. The Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended.
- 27. SUBRECIPIENT certifies, by signing this Contract, that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency. This certification is made pursuant to the regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, 28 CFR 67.510, as published at Part VII of the May 26, 1988, Federal Register, and any relevant program-specific regulations. This provision shall be required of every subcontractor receiving any payment in whole or in part from federal funds. SUBRECIPIENT must notify COUNTY if they become disbarred or suspended during the term of this agreement.
- 28. In order to comply with 2 CFR Part 200 Subpart D, section 200.331, SUBRECIPIENT will list in Attachment 5 the name of the Federal awarding agency, pass-through entity, and contact information for awarding official of Federal Grants Awarded as documented by an award letter.

V. Budget

General	Administrations/Operations:	Staffing	costs,	utilities,	
maintena	nce, supplies, and other costs as	SSOCIALED WILL	ii operatii	ig tile	
Shelter					
Not to Ex	ceed Total Amount (for the Du	ration of the	Contract	:t)	\$4,492,650

DIRECT SERVICE INCOME ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA EMERGENCY SOLUTIONS GRANT INCOME ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA FOR CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 2022 Income Limits

Effective June 15, 2022 Clark County Median Family Income is \$81,700.

Family Size	Annual Income Not to Exceed
1	\$17,200
2	\$19,650
3	\$22,100
4	\$24,550
5	\$26,550
6	\$28,500
7	\$30,450
8	\$32,450

Source: https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/5079/esg-income-limits/

FY 2022 Fair Market Rents for Clark County, Nevada (Tenant-Based Rental Assistance Payment Standard)

Unit Size	Fair Market Rent Payment Standard*
Efficiency	\$848
1-bedroom	\$1,005
2-bedroom	\$1,216
3-bedroom	\$1,727
4-bedroom	\$2,081
5-bedroom	\$2,393
6-bedroom	\$3,111

Effective June 1, 2022. Source: https://www.huduser.gov/portal/datasets/fmr.html.

^{*} Fair Market Rents determine rent ceilings for rental units for the Emergency Solutions Grant program. The Program Payment Standard amounts are for rent payments that include utilities. If the tenant pays the utilities, then the calculation of the tenant rent must include a reasonable utility allowance. In this case, rent plus utility allowance shall not exceed the Fair Market Rent amount. (Source: https://www.hudexchange.info/faqs/2365/does-the-fair-market-rent-fmr-include-utilities/)

PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT MONTHLY REPORT

PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT MONTHLY REPORT TO CLARK COUNTY

Reflecting Month:

Year:

AGENCY:

HOPELINK OF SOUTHERN NEVADA, A Nevada Corporation

PROGRAM:

EMERGENCY SHELTER PROGRAM

PROGRESS TOWARDS ACHIEVING UTCOMES:

OUTCOMES	THIS MONTH	YEAR TO DATE
333 individuals in need of safe respite from the streets as part of the COVID-19 pandemic response provided with emergency shelter.	Total # served the quarter ONLY Unduplicated Households and Individuals assisted (specify)	Total unduplicated # served

NARRATIVE REPORT

QUARTERLY PROGRESS REPORT TO CLARK COUNTY

Reflecting Months:	_Year:

Organization: HOPELINK OF SOUTHERN NEVADA, A Nevada Corporation

Program: EMERGENCY SHELTER PROGRAM

PROGRESS TOWARDS ACHIEVING OBJECTIVES:

OBJECTIVE	THIS QUARTER	YEAR TO DATE
Maximum number of shelter spaces available		
Total number of unduplicated clients served		
Number of people stably housed or with increased income		
Number of clients connected to other services		
Program's progress toward achieving the outcomes outlined in the Scope of Services		

NARRATIVE REPORT: (please use additional pages as necessary)

Project Accomplishments:

Please briefly describe any special accomplishments or significant changes your agency/program has experienced this year (e.g. new or improved collaborations with other programs; community awareness activities; significant milestones; etc.)

Describe any problems and/or changes implemented during the operating year:

Describe any progress made to build collaborations or facilitate cooperation among and between agencies and persons serving this population:

Please list any Technical Assistance subject matters that would improve your agency's or the community's ability to better serve this target population:

Southern Nevada ESG Written Standards

Approved April 2022

Table of Contents

l.	DEFINITIONS	3
11.	INTRODUCTION	4
III.	BACKGROUND	5
IV.	EVALUATION AND DOCUMENTATION OF ELIGIBILITY FOR ESG	6
14.	ESG General Eligibility Standards	6
	Emergency Shelter Eligibility & Documentation	6
	Rapid Re-housing Eligibility & Documentation	6
	Homeless Prevention Eligibility & Documentation	7
V.	RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS	8
	Preferred Order of Eligibility Documentation	8
	Survivors of Domestic Violence	8
	Individuals Residing in an Institution	9
VI.	USE OF DATA AND COORDINATION OF SERVICES	10
	Using HMIS and the Sage HMIS Reporting Repository	10
	Coordinated Entry	10
	HMIS Data Standards	11
	Confidentiality of Records	12
VII.	STREET OUTREACH STANDARDS	13
	Street Outreach Requirements, Eligible Activities & Costs	13
	Target Population	13
VIII	EMERGENCY SHELTER STANDARDS	14
	Emergency Shelter Requirements, Eligible Activities & Costs	14
	Emergency Shelter and Essential Services	15
	Eligible Participants	16
	Recordkeeping Requirements	16
	HMIS	16 16
	Coordination Among Shelters and Service Providers	10
IX.	HOMELESSNESS PREVENTION & RAPID RE-HOUSING STANDARDS	18
	Homelessness Prevention & Rapid Re-Housing Requirements, Eligible Activities & Costs	18
	Eligibility & Recordkeeping	18 19
	Prioritization	19
	Homelessness Prevention: Rental Assistance to Prevent Eviction	20
	Homelessness Prevention: Housing Relocation and Stabilization Services	21
	Homelessness Prevention: Maximum Period and Frequency of Assistance	22
	Rapid Re-Housing: Evaluation of Participant Eligibility	22
	Rapid Re-Housing: Rental Assistance	25
	Rapid Re-Housing: Housing Relocation and Stabilization Services	25
	Rapid Re-Housing: Case Management Rapid Re-Housing: Supportive Services	26
	Rapid Re-nodaling. Supportive Services	

	Rapid Re-Housing: Maximum Period and Frequency of Assistance	26
		27
	Limits on Housing Stabilization and Relocation Services	28
	Additional Rapid Re-Housing Program Requirements	
X.	HOUSING STANDARDS	29
<u> </u>	11000ING OTANDAROS	
XI.	ADDITIONAL MINIMUM STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS	30
	Nondiscrimination, Equal Opportunity, Affirmative Outreach, and Fair Housing	30
	Faith-Based Activities	30
	Environmental Review	30
	Termination Policies	31
		31
	Grievance Policy	
XII.	BEST PRACTICES FOR ESG PROGRAMS	32
	Housing First	32
	Low-Barrier Programming	32
	Low-Darrier Flogramming	
XIII	APPENDICES	33
7,111.	Appendix A: Definitions of "Homeless" and "At-Risk of Homelessness" for the ESG Program 34	33
	Appendix B: ESG Rapid Re-Housing Eligible Supportive Services	36
	Appendix b. E3G Napid Nethodaling Engine Supporting Software	

I. Definitions

Certification: is a written, notarized assertion, based on supporting evidence that must be kept available for inspection by ESG recipient staff, HUD, by the Inspector General of HUD, and by the public. The assertion shall be deemed to be accurate unless HUD determines otherwise, after inspecting the evidence and providing due notice and opportunity for comment.

Consolidated Plan: is the plan prepared in accordance with 24 CFR Part 91. Recipient means the legal entity to which HUD awards an ESG award and which is accountable for the use of the funds provided.

Grantee(s): "Grantee(s)" refers to recipients and Subrecipients of Federal Continuum of Care or Emergency Solutions Grant funding.

HMIS: is the Homeless Management Information System.

Household: refers to individuals or families.

HUD: is the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.

Non-profit organization: is an organization described in 26 U.S.C. 501(c) that is exempt from taxation under subtitle A of the Internal Revenue Code, has an accounting system and a voluntary board, and practices nondiscrimination in the provision of assistance.

Participant(s): "Participant(s)" refers to all individuals and families receiving assistance through a Continuum of Care or Emergency Solutions Grant-funded provider, including persons participating in programs funded through other federal, state, local, or private sources.

State: is the State of Nevada.

Sub-recipient: is any private non-profit organization or unit of general local government to which a sub-recipient provides funds to carry out the eligible activities under the grant and which is accountable to the sub-recipient for the use of the funds provided. The terms "sub-recipient" and "sub recipient" are synonymous.

II. Introduction

In accordance with Title 24 of the Code of Federal Regulations (24 CFR) 91.220(I)(4)(i) and 576.400(e) (1), The Southern Nevada Homeless Continuum of Care (CoC) developed the following written standards for the provision and prioritization of Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) funding for the City of Las Vegas, the City of North Las Vegas, and Clark County. ESG recipients and subrecipients are required by HUD to have written standards for providing ESG assistance and must consistently apply these standards to all program participants. The following standards are intended as basic, minimum standards to which individual ESG applicants and/ or subrecipients can add additional and more stringent standards applicable only to their own projects. These required standards help to ensure that the ESG program is administered fairly and systematically. The Southern Nevada Homeless CoC will continue to build upon and refine this document.

III. Background

The City of Las Vegas, the City of North Las Vegas, and Clark County are each awarded ESG funds annually from the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) as part of the annual allocation Process. These funds are designed to assist sheltered and unsheltered homeless persons, as well as those at risk of homelessness, and provide the services necessary to help those persons quickly regain stability in permanent housing after experiencing a housing crisis and/or homelessness. The Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act of 2009 (HEARTH Act) significantly amended the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act, including major revisions to the Emergency Shelter Grants program, which was renamed the Emergency Solutions Grants program. The HEARTH Act, and implementation of the applicable federal regulations by HUD, incorporated many of the lessons learned from the implementation of the Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing Recovery Act Program (HPRP) into the new ESG program, including placing a stronger emphasis on rapid re-housing assistance.

IV. Evaluation and Documentation of Eligibility for ESG

ESG General Eligibility Standards

Individuals and families eligible for emergency shelter, rapid re-housing, or other assistance funded by ESG funds must be homeless or at risk of homelessness based on criteria defined by the General Definition of Homeless Individual, found in the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing (HEARTH Act) and the Definition of At-Risk of Homelessness defined by the Emergency Solutions Grant Program interim rule. Complete definitions are found at 24 CFR 576.2 and are included as Appendix A.

Participants in ESG-funded programs must have incomes at or below 30% of the Area Median Income based on the HUD income limits in effect at the time of income verification. Income eligibility is not based on HUD income limits that correspond with the grant year under which the ESG funds were awarded. Current income limits can be found by following the directions on the HUD Exchange web site at: https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/5079/esg-income-limits/

Subrecipients of ESG funds will develop policies and procedures to evaluate individuals' and families' eligibility for assistance under ESG. This will involve participating in Coordinated Entry with the CoC and screening individuals to determine eligibility based on criteria for ESG as determined by HUD.

Emergency Shelter Eligibility & Documentation

Emergency Shelter programs are required to document eligibility at program entry. However, HUD recognizes that third-party documentation at the emergency shelter level is not feasible in most cases. Therefore, shelters have a different standard of recordkeeping than is required for all other types of assistance. Subrecipients operating emergency shelters can document homeless status through a certification by the individual or head of household as the primary method of establishing homeless eligibility. Under no circumstances must the lack of third-party documentation prevent an individual or family from being admitted immediately to emergency shelter, receiving street outreach services, or receiving services from a victim service provider.

For shelters where program participants may stay only one night and must leave in the morning, documentation must be obtained each night. If program participants stay more than one night, then documentation must be obtained on the first night the household stays in the shelter.

Please note that emergency shelters are required to enter each individual or family seeking emergency shelter into HMIS, but the intake process should be able to be done in a quick manner.

Rapid Re-Housing Eligibility & Documentation

Program participants receiving ESG Rapid Re-Housing assistance must be literally homeless, as defined by the ESG interim rule. Re-evaluation must occur not less than once annually. At this re- evaluation, the participant's household income cannot exceed 30% of median family income for the area, as determined by HUD. Examples of documentation include program entry forms, assessment tools for Coordinated Entry, and copies of wage statements, tax returns, benefits statements, bank statements or other documents that outline participant assets and affirm that the household is at or below 30% of the Area Median Income. HUD's preferred order of documentation as described below applies to Rapid Re-Housing programs.

Homelessness Prevention Eligibility & Documentation

For households receiving ESG Homelessness Prevention assistance through ESG, income also cannot exceed 30% of Area Median Income, and this must be determined during entry into the assistance program. Re-evaluation for Homelessness Prevention assistance must take place not less than once every three months, with records being kept for each re-evaluation. Examples of documentation include program entry forms, assessment tools for Coordinated Entry, copies of eviction notices or utility bills and shut-off notices, and copies of wage statements, tax returns, benefits statements, bank statements or other documents that outline participant assets and affirm that the household is at or below 30% of the Area Median Income. HUD's preferred order of documentation as described below applies to Homeless Prevention programs.

V. Recordkeeping Requirements

Preferred Order of Eligibility Documentation

Subrecipients must establish and follow written intake procedures to ensure compliance with HUD's definition of homelessness and recordkeeping requirements. Subrecipient will maintain records for five years for each individual and family determined ineligible to receive ESG Homelessness Prevention or Rapid Re-housing assistance. The record must include documentation of the reason for that determination, demographic data (race, sex, national origin), and age.

HUD has a preferred order of documentation for eligibility of clients being served by ESG-funded projects. Please note that there are exceptions to this preferred order, including emergency shelters, street outreach, and victim services, in order to protect the safety of individuals/families fleeing or attempting to flee domestic violence. HUD's preferred order for other ESG-funded programs is:

A. Third Party Documentation

- 1. Written documentation that includes such items as eviction notices, job termination notices, wage statements, benefits statements, tax returns or bank statements.
- 2. Oral documentation, which includes clear notes that document names, dates, and information shared through conversations with former employers, landlords, government benefits staff or others in an official position to verify client status.
- B. Intake Staff Observations, including notes on client status; this is not applicable to income documentation.
- C. Self-Certification, which should be used only as a last resort with careful documentation of how income documents were sought and why they could not be secured for a client.

For all ESG programs, subrecipients are required to keep documentation of client eligibility, but the original assessment and HUD's preferred order can vary somewhat based on the type of program, as outlined above.

Survivors of Domestic Violence

For individuals who are survivors of domestic violence, acceptable evidence includes:

- A. Source documents provided by an outside source (Written Third Party Verification of Homeless Status form or Oral Third-Party Verification of Homeless Status); or Records contained in an HMIS or comparable database used by victim service or legal service providers are acceptable evidence of third-party documentation and intake worker observations.
- B. Staff/Intake worker observations. Documentation by Subrecipients' staff is considered observation of Homeless Status.
- C. Certification from the person seeking assistance. Subrecipient staff must certify efforts made to obtain third party documentation before allowing applicant to self-certify.

Lack of third-party documentation must not prevent an individual or family from being immediately admitted to emergency shelter, receiving street outreach services, or being immediately admitted to shelter or receiving services provided by a survivor service provider.

Individuals Residing in an Institution

For individuals residing in an institution (including a jail, substance abuse or mental health treatment facility, hospital, or other similar facility) for fewer than 90 days, acceptable evidence includes:

- A. Discharge paperwork or a written or oral referral. From a social worker, case manager, or other appropriate official of the institution, stating the beginning and end dates of the time residing in the institution that demonstrates the person resided there for less than 90 days.
- B. An Oral Statement-All oral statements must be recorded by the intake; or
- C. Certification from the person seeking assistance. Where the evidence above is not obtainable, a written record of the intake worker's due diligence in attempting to obtain the evidence described in the paragraph above and a certification by the individual seeking assistance that states that they are exiting or have just exited an institution where they resided for less than 90 days; and Evidence of literally homeless status prior to entry.

Evidence that the individual was homeless and living in a place not meant for human habitation, a safe haven, or in an emergency shelter, and was chronically homeless prior to entry into the institutional care facility (as defined in paragraph (1) of 25 CFR 578.3) (acceptable documentation listed above).

VI. Use of Data and Coordination of Services

Using HMIS and the Sage HMIS Reporting Repository

Clients assisted with ESG funds need to be entered into the Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) during client intake. Agencies administering ESG funds must:

- A. Maintain a minimum HMIS data quality of 90%
- B. Maintain complete and accurate files for all clients assisted with ESG funds (both in HMIS and through hard copy documentation of eligibility)
- C. Comply with all data collection and entry requests to allow proper use of the Sage HMIS Reporting Repository and the completion of the Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER)
- D. Keep complete and accurate files for all families and individuals denied services under the ESG program. These files must contain general demographic information and document the reason for the denial of services and must be kept for five (5) years.

PLEASE NOTE: Agencies providing services solely to victims of domestic violence, stalking, sexual abuse, and trafficking are exempt from using HMIS. In those cases, a comparable database will be used that protects the identity and safety of clients.

Coordinated Entry

To help ensure homeless households receive immediate housing and minimize barriers to housing access, all service providers which receive Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) funding, including ESG recipients and subrecipients, are required to participate in the Southern Nevada Continuum of Care Coordinated Entry System (CES)/Coordinated Intake (CI). All ESG providers must comply with relevant provisions of the Southern Nevada Coordinated Entry Policies and Procedures.

The primary coordinative body for implementation will begin with the Southern Nevada Homelessness Continuum of Care. Implementing Coordinated Entry is a federal requirement for several federal programs under the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). In Southern Nevada, we have used it as an opportunity to initiate changes in our homeless response system, shifting from an ad hoc access and assessment process to a standardized process for all clients with coordinated referrals to housing and supportive services. The Continuum's designated coordinated entry provider(s) will coordinate with referral agencies, United Way EFSP recipients, and other community resources to link clients in need of housing assistance to other services and shelters.

Homeless individuals will be assessed through the centralized coordinated entry process. During intake, homeless individuals will be assessed, evaluated, and referred to services if they are available and appropriate for the individual.

Homeless service providers who serve other types of sub-populations such as families (adults accompanied by children), unaccompanied youth, and persons at risk of homelessness will also be required to use the centralized coordinated intake process as implemented for that particular sub-population. Providers serving households fleeing domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, stalking, or other dangerous or life-threatening conditions, including human trafficking, may include separate but comparable processes and databases in order to provide safety, security, and confidentiality. The Coordinated Entry process must allow emergency services and shelter programs to operate with as few barriers to entry as possible.

The process must also ensure adequate privacy protection of all participant information.

Additional information on Coordinated Entry can be found in the HUD Notice: CPD-17-01, issued January 23, 2017 and found at: https://www.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/Notice- CPD-17-01-Establishing-Additional-Requirements-or-a-Continuum-of-Care-Centralized-or- Coordinated-Assessment-System.pdf.

HMIS Data Standards

Except as otherwise specified, data associated with the CE system should be stored in the CoC's HMIS. All data entered into or accessed or retrieved from HMIS must be protected and kept private in accordance with the Clarity Nevada HMIS Governance Charter's Privacy Plan and HMIS Data and Technical Standards as announced by the CoC Interim Rule at 24 CFR 578.7(a)(8).19. Before collecting any information as part of the CE system, all staff and volunteers must first either (1) obtain the participant's informed consent to share and store participant information for the purposes of assessing and referring participants through the CE process, or (2) confirm that such consent has already been obtained and is still active.

Prior to every client's initial assessment, ESG-funded programs must provide a verbal explanation that the client's information will be entered into an electronic database that stores client information and an explanation of the HMIS Client Consent to Release Information form terms.

After being provided a verbal explanation, each client who agrees to have his or her personal protected information HMIS must sign the HMIS Client Consent to Release Information form.

Whenever possible, the participant's consent should be in written form. The ESG subrecipient will not deny services to any participant based on that participant's refusal to allow their data to be stored or shared unless a Federal statute requires collection, use, storage, and reporting of a participant's personally identifiable information as a condition of program participation. Where appropriate, non-personally identifiable information about participants who refuse consent to share personally identifiable data should be logged in an electronic case file that uses pseudonyms, e.g., "Jane Doe," to preserve as much non-personally identifiable information as possible for statistical purposes.

The completeness and accuracy of data entered into HMIS and the CE system will be checked at least once per month as part of the community's overall efforts to continuously improve data

quality. The CoC will provide training and technical assistance upon request to anyone using the CE system that faces obstacles to inputting complete and accurate data, and may recommend and/or require technical assistance for providers who receive a low score on automated data quality reports. Clients assisted with ESG funds should be entered into HMIS during client intake, agency must maintain a minimum HMIS data quality of 80%. Agencies solely providing emergency shelter to victims of domestic violence, stalking, sexual abuse, and trafficking can request an exempt but, must try to code clients in the HMIS to hide their identity. If that is not possible, and only in those cases, a comparable database should be used that protects the identity and safety of clients.

Confidentiality of Records

All ESG-funded programs must uphold all privacy protection standards established. Only individuals who have completed a full set of HMIS training and signed an HMIS end-user agreement may directly access CE system data. All such persons must be informed of and understand the privacy rules associated with collection, management, and reporting of client data. Only persons who have a direct role to play in the CE system (i.e., intake, assessment, matching, referral, management, technical assistance, or evaluation) should have direct access to CE system data on the general homeless population of the CoC. Other service providers should be limited to data that relates to specific clients who are currently assigned to or enrolled with those service providers. In certain circumstances, individuals can access CE HMIS data for research purposes without meeting the above criteria. A research data agreement is required to receive HMIS aggregated data. Please see the Clarity Nevada HMIS Governance Charter for more details on research agreements.

However, in sharing data, great care must be taken not to share personally identifiable data outside the context of the systems and purpose(s) covered by the client's affirmative consent. Therefore, all entities that routinely share data with or receive data from the CE system must sign data-sharing agreements that obligate the entities to follow comparable privacy standards and that restrict the use of the data being shared to uses that are compatible with clients' consent. In particular, personally identifiable data must always be used for the benefit of the client to which the data pertains, and not for the general convenience of other government entities.

Requests for data made by prosecutors, detectives, immigration officials, or by police officers who are not actively cooperating with the CoC should be refused unless the requesting party displays a valid warrant specifically ordering the release of the data.

VII. Street Outreach Standards

Standards for targeting and providing essential services related to street outreach | 24 CFR 576.400(e)(3)(ii)

Street Outreach Requirements, Eligible Activities & Costs

Street Outreach should be principally focused to one goal: that of supporting persons experiencing homelessness in achieving some form of permanent, sustainable housing. While Street Outreach providers may use incentives to encourage trust and build relationships, or to ensure that homeless households' emergency needs are met, the awards made should be used with permanent housing as the end goal rather than simply seeking to alleviate the burden of living on the streets.

ESG street outreach funds may be used for costs of providing essential services necessary to reach out to unsheltered homeless people; connect them with emergency shelter, housing, or critical services; and provide urgent, non-facility-based care to unsheltered homeless people who are unwilling or unable to access emergency shelter, housing, or an appropriate facility.

Individuals and families shall be offered the following eligible Street Outreach activities, as needed and appropriate: engagement, case management, emergency health and mental health, transportation services (24 576.101).

Target Population

Providers of Street Outreach services shall target unsheltered homeless individuals and families, meaning those with a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not designed for or ordinarily used as a regular sleeping accommodation for human beings, including a car, park, abandoned building, bus or train station, airport, or camping ground. All street outreach must target areas where homeless individuals dwell, be that on private/public property, undeveloped land, in encampments or in tunnels located within the municipality.

VIII. Emergency Shelter Standards

Emergency Shelter Requirements, Eligible Activities & Costs

Policies and procedures for admission, diversion, referral, and discharge by emergency shelters assisted under ESG, including standards regarding length of stay, if any, and safeguards to meet the safety and shelter needs of special populations, e.g., victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking; and individuals and families who have the highest barriers to housing and are likely to be homeless the longest.

ESG funds may be used for costs of providing essential services to homeless families and individuals in emergency shelters, renovating buildings to be used as emergency shelter for homeless families and individuals, and operating emergency shelters. An emergency shelter is any facility with the primary purpose of providing temporary shelter for the homeless in general of for a specific population of the homeless. Emergency shelters do not require occupants to sign leases or occupancy agreements.

Homeless individuals/families seeking shelter must be provided shelter. Shelter stays should be avoided, if possible, and when not possible, limited to the shortest time necessary to help participants regain permanent housing. If there are no appropriate or available beds immediately available for the client at the location he/she is seeking assistance, then the agency must collaborate with another provider to place client into another appropriate shelter.

Shelters must meet or exceed minimum habitability standards specified in CFR 576.403 that covers the building structure and materials, access, space and security, interior air quality, water supply, sanitary facilities, environmental temperatures, light and electricity, food preparation, sanitary conditions, and fire safety.

There is no city or county-imposed limit on the length of stay. It is the discretion of the agency and program providing shelter services to set limits, if any, on the length of stay depending on the target population, client's barriers to obtain permanent housing, and other circumstances the client is facing. Households should only be referred to ESG-funded emergency shelters after exhausting all available options for diversion. Emergency shelter programs should be closely linked to the Regional Coordinated Entry System (CES) to ensure clients are referred to the most appropriate housing resources including, but not limited to, rapid re-housing and permanent supportive housing. Linkages should also be made to applicable mainstream resources.

Per HUD, sheltered families with children cannot be broken apart. If no shelter is available on-site, an alternative living arrangement must place the family together which may include placement at another shelter/ housing provider that can house families, or hotel-motel rooms (only in areas where no other appropriate shelter is available).

Providers should aim to have clients leave the program into a permanent and stable housing situation. This can be placement into supportive housing, or client may become self-sufficient and able to maintain his/her own housing with a stable source in income.

If client leaves the program and is not stably housed, all efforts should be made to place client into another more appropriate shelter/ housing situation.

Vulnerable populations seeking shelter need access to appropriate shelter that is safe, sanitary, and meets or exceeds minimum habitability standards. This population includes victims of domestic violence, youth, people with special needs, the elderly, medically frail, mentally ill, and victims of human trafficking. Upon intake and if necessary, client may be referred and sheltered elsewhere in a more appropriate location. Emergency shelters that provide housing to victims of domestic violence must have an appropriate security system in place to protect housed victims of domestic violence from their perpetrators. Currently there are a few providers that offer emergency shelter beds and supportive services to these vulnerable populations. There is no time limit on their length of stay. Clients are not discharged back out to the street or into unsafe living conditions, but if necessary are referred to another appropriate

housing program.

In addition to homeless clients seeking shelter, street outreach is conducted by local homeless providers including the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department to get homeless people located in places not meant for human habitation into emergency shelter or transitional/ permanent housing.

Emergency Shelter and Essential Services

Policies and procedures for assessing, prioritizing, and reassessing individuals' and families' needs for essential services related to emergency shelter | 24 CFR 576.400(e)(3)(iv)

ESG funds may be used to provide essential services to individuals and families who are in an emergency shelter. Essential services for participants of emergency shelter assistance can include case management, child care, education services, employment assistance and job training, outpatient health services, legal services, life skills training, mental health services, substance abuse treatment services, transportation, and services for special populations.

ESG recipients shall be required to use the Coordinated Entry system to help determine an individual or family's need for emergency shelter or other ESG funded assistance, per the Clark County/Las Vegas Continuum (COC).

ESG sub-recipients are responsible to assess an individual or family's initial need for emergency shelter and must reassess their need on an ongoing basis to ensure that only those individual or families with the greatest need receive ESG-funded emergency shelter assistance. Shelters that

serve families must serve all eligible families and may not refuse services based on the age of children or the size of the family.

Client re-assessment will take place at the participant level and at the service provider level. Clients meet with case managers throughout their participation in the program, and have regular progress evaluations. Clients have opportunity to provide assessment and feedback of programs as well.

Clients assisted with ESG funds are to be entered into HMIS during client intake and agency must maintain a minimum HMIS data quality of 90%. Agencies solely providing emergency shelter to victims of domestic violence, stalking, sexual abuse, and trafficking are exempt. In those cases, a comparable database should be used that protects the identity and safety of clients.

Clients must be assisted to the maximum extent possible with connections to other programs targeted to homeless people in the local Continuum of Care area, as well as mainstream housing, health, social services, employment, education, and youth programs for which they may be eligible (see 24 CFR 576.400 Area-wide systems coordination, sections b and c for a full list). This includes CoC, HUD-VASH, Education for Homeless Children and Youth, Health Care for Homeless, Runaway and Homeless Youth, Homeless Veterans Reintegration, Section 8, Public Housing, HOME Investment Partnership, Workforce Investment Act, and TANF programs. When assisting vulnerable populations, services must be tailored to address their special needs. Individualized case management is also highly encouraged.

To improve awareness of services, ESG-funded agencies are required to attend training and meeting sessions on homeless services in the community. This includes the Mainstream Programs Basic Training, the SNRPC Committee on Homelessness meetings, and SOAR training.

Eligible Participants

ESG-funded emergency shelter programs serve households that meet the definition of "homeless" as defined by HUD at 24 CFR 576.2. Households served by ESG-funded emergency shelters lack a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence; cannot be served by other programs or resources; and have no other options for overnight shelter.

Recordkeeping Requirements

For shelters where program participants may stay only one night and must leave in the morning, documentation must be obtained each night. If program participants may stay more than one night, then documentation must be obtained on the first night the household stays in the shelter.

Subrecipients operating emergency shelters can document homeless status through a certification by the individual or head of household as the primary method of establishing homeless eligibility. One method of meeting this standard would be to require households to complete a sign-in sheet, with a statement at the top informing the individual or head of household that by signing, they certify that they are homeless.

Under no circumstances must the lack of third-party documentation prevent an individual or family from being immediately admitted to emergency shelter, receiving street outreach services, or being immediately admitted to shelter or receiving services provided by a victim service provider.

HMIS

All individuals and families seeking emergency shelter must be entered into HMIS. Only the uniform data elements are required, however, at entry.

Coordination Among Shelters and Service Providers

Policies and procedures for coordination among emergency shelter providers, essential services providers, homelessness prevention, and rapid re-housing assistance providers; other homeless assistance providers; and mainstream service and housing providers. See § 576.400(b) and (c) for a list of programs with which ESG-funded activities must be coordinated and integrated to the maximum extent practicable | 24 CFR 576.400(e)(3)(v)

A centralized coordinated entry has been adopted by the Continuum of Care and is in place in Southern Nevada for certain populations. Providers assisting those populations and assisted with ESG funds must participate in the centralized coordinated entry system. Providers are also required have their most recent information updated in Nevada 211. To improve collaboration and awareness of services, ESG funded agencies are required to attend training and meeting sessions on homeless services in the community.

Case management and intake staff are required to attend Mainstream Programs Basic Training classes, which provide information on the local and federal resources and programs covering the following core topics: Income Supports, Employment Services, Health Care, Legal Services, and Housing Resources. Specialized topics typically include: Veterans, Housing Resources, Employment Services/Income Supports, Addictions & Mental Health, Homeless Youth/Young Adults and Families w/ Children, Human Trafficking, Senior Services/ HealthCare Services, Legal Services/Financial Literacy, Domestic Violence, HIV/AIDS, and Services for Persons with Disabilities.

ESG subrecipients on the director or management level are highly encouraged to attend a minimum of 5 Southern Nevada Homelessness Continuum of Care (SNH CoC) Board meetings per year.

One staff member from each ESG-funded program providing direct supportive services is highly encouraged to complete SSI/SSDI, Outreach, Access, and Recovery (SOAR) training within 18

months of the date their assistance agreement for ESG funds is fully executed. Outcomes should be reported to SNH COC Board staff at least once per year. SOAR training, a national project funded by Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) is available for direct service workers who, once trained, understand Disability Determination Services and Social Security Administration's requirements and appropriate documentation needs. SOAR training helps to decrease the time to issue determinations and reduces the need for appeals. This is highly beneficial for eligible adults who are homeless or at risk of homelessness and have a mental illness and/or co-occurring substance abuse disorder, which are also populations that face significant barriers to seeking stable affordable permanent housing.

IX. Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing Standards

Homelessness Prevention & Rapid Re-Housing Eligible Activates & Costs

Homelessness Prevention (HP) assistance includes housing relocation and stabilization services and/or short- and/or medium-term rental assistance necessary to prevent an individual or family from moving into an emergency shelter or another place described in paragraph (1) of the homeless definition in 24 CFR 576. The costs of homelessness prevention are only eligible to the extent that the assistance is necessary to help the program participant regain stability in the program participant's current permanent housing or move into other permanent housing and achieve stability in that housing.

Rapid Re-Housing (RRH) assistance includes housing relocation and stabilization services and short- and/ or medium-term rental assistance to help a homeless individual or family move as quickly as possible into permanent housing and achieve stability in that housing. All Subrecipients are required to receive referrals through the Regional Coordinated Entry System.

Eligibility & Recordkeeping

Policies and procedures for determining and prioritizing which eligible families and individuals will receive homelessness prevention assistance and which eligible families and individuals will receive rapid re-housing assistance | 24 CFR 576.400(e)(3)(vi)

Intake and HMIS: In addition to the application forms created by their organization, subrecipients are required to use HMIS during client intake when adding a client to their ESG- funded program. Criteria must be supported by documentation that has been copied and uploaded into the electronic file in HMIS and stored in the client's file.

Homeless Prevention: Eligible participants are individuals/families with incomes below 30% Area Median Income, at risk of becoming homeless and moving into an emergency shelter or a place not meant for human habitation. All assisted individuals/families must meet eligibility criteria as outlined at 576.103 Homeless Prevention Component in the Interim Rule. Participants are eligible if they meet the HUD definition of "at risk of homelessness", or who meet the criteria in paragraph 2, 3, or 4 of the homeless definition in 2 CFR 576.2 (See Appendix A) AND have an annual income below 30% of area median family income. The client file must contain source documentation of annual income, including wage statements, tax returns, benefits statements, or bank account statements. Those who meet the HUD criteria of eligibility will receive priority for assistance over other eligible persons. Those who meet the HUD criteria of eligibility and who score over 20 points on the Housing Needs Assessment Matrix will receive priority for the most appropriate assistance over other eligible persons.

Rapid Re-housing: Eligible participants need to be literally homeless. To be eligible beneficiaries must meet the definition of homelessness under paragraph 1 of the "homeless definition" defined by the ESG interim rule (see Appendix A), or meet criteria under paragraph 4 of homeless definition AND live in an emergency shelter or other place described in paragraph 1 of homeless definition. Clients eligible under the HUD definition of literally homeless will receive priority over other eligible persons. Clients eligible under the HUD definition of literally homeless and receive the appropriate score from the CHAT will receive priority over other eligible persons. HUD requires clients receiving assistance for rapid re-housing to be re-evaluated at least once per year, however, on a local basis, additional assessments are required.

Prioritization

Homeless Prevention programs should target households at greatest risk of homelessness and assist participants to increase household incomes during enrollment.

ESG rapid re-housing assistance targets and prioritizes homeless families who are most in need of this temporary assistance and are most likely to achieve and maintain stable housing, whether subsidized or unsubsidized, after the program concludes. Depending on need, families are connected to either short-term or medium-term rental assistance.

Short-term rental assistance (up to 3 months) programs target families with low to moderate barriers to securing and retaining permanent housing. These families require minimal service intervention and limited financial assistance to secure and stabilize in permanent housing.

Medium-term rental assistance (4-24 months) is targeted towards families who experience moderate to high barriers to securing and retaining housing. These families have multiple barriers to housing that require longer periods of time to resolve and may require more intensive service interventions.

Homelessness Prevention: Rental Assistance to Prevent Eviction

All clients will complete the Homeless Prevention Consortium Housing Needs Assessment Matrix and the Supplemental Application or agency application. Clients eligible under the HUD definition of at risk of homelessness and who score over 20 points on the Matrix will receive priority for the most appropriate assistance over other eligible persons who are at risk of homelessness. Clients eligible under the HUD definition of homelessness will be matched to a program that best fits their circumstances. HUD requires clients receiving assistance for homeless prevention to be re-evaluated at least once every three months. Furthermore, the following local conditions apply:

Short-term rent (1 to 3 months of assistance allowed at 100% rate of rent)

- A. The household will actively engage in a Housing Stabilization Plan, the goal of which will be to either increase income and/or reduce expenses such that the rental cost is no more than 80% of the household's net income.
- B. The client household will agree to participate in case management and other activities designed to improve their ability to remain stably housed.
- C. The initial assistance must have been necessary to avoid eviction (eviction notice/ notice to quit letter required), or to avoid or reduce an unnecessary episode of homelessness of the household.
- D. Rental assistance may not be provided to a program participant receiving rental assistance from other public sources (except for 6 months arrears).
- E. Rental rates must not exceed the Fair Market Rent specified for household size and rental rates must comply with HUD's rent reasonableness.
- F. Any housing units constructed before January 1, 1978, will be assessed for lead-based paint hazards.
- G. Housing unit must meet minimum habitability standards specified in 24 CFR 576.403(c).
- H. Each household receiving rental assistance must have a legally binding, written lease (between the owner and participant household) for the rental unit in their name.
- I. Agency must have a rental assistance agreement in place with the party to which payments are being made which must set forth the terms under which rental assistance will be provided.
- J. Arrears (no more than 6 months) must be paid off first to bring the balance to zero. Payment of rental arrears can only be a one-time payment up to 6 months including any late fees on those arrears. Late fees for subsequent months will not be paid with ESG funds.
- K. Unit owners must be paid on a timely basis in accordance with the rental assistance agreement. Any late payment penalties that are incurred must be paid by subrecipient or household (with non-ESG funds).
- L. The household will be "re-evaluated" for income eligibility no later than the 20th day at the end of the 3rd month. At re-evaluation, household income cannot exceed 30% of AMI, otherwise financial assistance will cease. The client file must contain source documentation of income, including wage statements, tax returns, benefits statements, or bank account statements.
- M. A second and third issuance of rental assistance can be considered when the household demonstrates compliance with and progress on the Housing Stability Plan.

N. If at the third month "re-evaluation" and assessment finds that the client needs additional assistance, and if the household demonstrates compliance with and progress on the Housing Stability Plan, and if client continues to meet income qualifications, client may proceed to receive medium term rent assistance. Client must continue to be "re- evaluated" every three months.

Medium-term rent (4 to 24 months of assistance)

Up to 100% of the fourth month of rent may be paid. Additional months may be paid at a rate of 75% of rent.

- A. The household will continue to actively engage in a Housing Stability Plan, the goal of which will be to either increase income and/or reduce expenses such that the rental cost is no more than 80% of the household's net income:
 - Priority will be given to households who receive the appropriate score from the CHAT and who
 may need more than 3 months to stabilize.
- B. The household will be re-assessed monthly, no later than the 20th day of each month. Each additional month of rental assistance can be considered when the household demonstrates compliance with and progress on the Housing Stability Plan. For each re- assessment, the client file must contain source documentation of income, including wage statements, tax returns, benefits statements, or bank account statements.

Homelessness Prevention: Housing Relocation and Stabilization Services

Eligible expenses under this category include: rental application fees, last month's rent, security deposits, moving costs, utility deposits, and utility payments.

Housing relocation and stabilization services relating to rent

NOTE: All clients will complete the Clark County Coordinated Entry process

- A. Eligible households/ individuals must be individuals/families with incomes below 30% Area Median Income, at risk of becoming homeless and moving into an emergency shelter or a place not meant for human habitation. All assisted individuals/families must be evaluated and meet eligibility criteria as outlined at 24 CFR 576.103 Homeless Prevention Component in Interim Rule. Participants are eligible if they meet the HUD definition of "at risk of homelessness", or meet the criteria in paragraph 2, 3, or 4 of the homeless definition (see Appendix 1) AND have an annual income below 30% of area median family income. The client file must contain source documentation of annual income, including wage statements, tax returns, benefits statements, or bank account statements.
- B. If necessary to relocate to another affordable housing unit, security deposits may be paid but must equal no more than 2 months of rent.
- C. If necessary as a component of relocation to affordable housing, moving costs may be allowed on a case-by-case basis as allowed by the ESG Interim Regulation: 24 CFR 576.105. Eligible costs are truck rentals, hiring a moving company, and temporary storage fees for up to 3 months. Fees must be reasonable and occur after client intake and before the new move into a more affordable home.
- D. If necessary to relocate and obtain new housing for household, last month's rent (of new housing unit) may be paid. Assistance must not exceed one month's rent.

Housing relocation and stabilization services relating to utility assistance

All clients will complete the Homeless Prevention Consortium Housing Needs Assessment Matrix, Homeless Prevention Consortium Supplemental Application, agency application and/or have a Southern Nevada Continuum of Care Centralized Coordinated Assessment and Intake System referral.

Eligible utility services are gas, electric, water, and sewage.

- A. Eligible households/ individuals must be individuals/families with incomes below 30% Area Median Income, at risk of becoming homeless and moving into an emergency shelter or a place not meant for human habitation. All assisted individuals/families must be evaluated and meet eligibility criteria as outlined at 24 CFR 576.103 Homeless Prevention Component in Interim Rule. Participants are eligible if they meet the HUD definition of "at risk of homelessness", or meet the criteria in paragraph 2, 3, or 4 of the homeless definition (see Appendix 1) AND have an annual income below 30% of area median family income. The client file must contain source documentation of annual income, including wage statements, tax returns, benefits statements, or bank account statements.
- B. The utility must be for a service at a housing unit leased or otherwise contracted to the assisted household. Housing unit must also meet minimum habitability standards specified in 24 CFR 576.403(c).
- C. Household must provide documentation that they will be losing their housing (eviction letter) and is also to receive rental assistance to avoid homelessness.
- D. Utility service must be in client's name and at the address they are living and obtaining rental assistance.
- E. Households with a shut off notice of utilities shall be assisted to bring the past due amount to a zero balance, provided utilities are no more than six (6) months in arrears and shall be considered for rental assistance in that or the following month.
- F. If the household has an Eviction Notice, they can be assisted with rent arrears and utilities arrears.
- G. The client file must contain evidence that the household has applied for assistance from one or more of the Energy Assistance Programs administered through the Division of Welfare and Supportive Services of the State of Nevada or through the United Way of Southern Nevada, or other public programs available for assistance with utility payments;
- H. Up to <u>24</u> months of utility payments per household, per service, including up to 6 months of arrearages, per service is allowed. Arrears must be paid as a one- time payment.

Homelessness Prevention: Maximum Period and Frequency of Assistance

Any combination of *rental assistance* which includes short- and medium-term rental assistance (including arrears) AND security deposits and last month's rent (both eligible under housing relocation & stabilization services financial assistance) may not exceed <u>24 months</u> total during any 3-year period.

Rental assistance

• The maximum *times* a participant can receive non-consecutive short/ medium term *rental assistance* is 3 times per <u>24</u>-month period. Rental arrears are the exception and are limited to 1 time assistance, per participant, within a 3-year period.

Housing relocation & stabilization services financial assistance costs (relating to rent)

- Rental application fees, security deposits, and last month's rent are limited to 1 time assistance, per participant, per service, within a 3-year period.
- · Security deposits cannot exceed 2 months of rent.
- Last month's rent may not exceed 1 month of rent.

Housing relocation & stabilization services financial assistance costs (relating to utilities)

- The maximum times a participant can receive non-consecutive utility assistance for monthly utility bill
 payments is 3 times per <u>24</u>-month period per service.
- The maximum period a participant can receive utility assistance is <u>24</u> months within a 3- year period. The
 exception is arrears. Utility arrear payments of up to 6 months are allowed per participant, per service,
 within a 3-year period.
- Deposits are limited to 1 time assistance per participant, per service, per 3 years.

Rapid Re-Housing: Evaluation of Participant Eligibility

ESG-funded RRH projects are required to complete an initial evaluation of a participant's eligibility and needs prior to program entry. ESG-RRH is available to individuals and families whose income is less than or equal to 30 percent of Area Median Income (AMI) and who are literally homeless under Category 1 of the Homeless Definition Final Rule. In addition, during the initial evaluation, grantees are required to determine the amount of assistance and type of assistance needed by the participant to obtain and maintain permanent housing stability. At a minimum, subrecipients must re-evaluate participant eligibility and the amount and type of assistance required at least once annually for all participants receiving assistance. To continue to receive CoC- and ESG-RRH assistance, a participant's re-evaluation must demonstrate eligibility based on:

- Amount and Type of Assistance Needed: The grantee must determine the amount and type of assistance needed by the participant to (re)gain stability in permanent housing.
- Lack of Resources and Support Networks: The participant must continue to lack sufficient resources and support networks necessary to retain housing without assistance.
- Income: The participant's income must be less than or equal to 30 percent of Area Median Income (AMI).

Subrecipients should require participants/clients to notify the project in the event of changes in their income or other circumstances that affect their need for assistance (e.g., changes in employment income or in household composition). When notified of any such material change, grantees must re-evaluate eligibility, as well as the amount and/or types of assistance needed by the participant.

Rapid Re-Housing: Rental Assistance

Generally, restrictions are similar to the rent and utility restrictions under Homelessness Prevention, except that the maximum number of month's client can be assisted is 24 months, per 3-year period, under rapid re-housing.

Depending on the terms of the project's individual grant agreement, ESG grantees may provide participants with up to 24 months of rental assistance during any three-year period. Assistance may include any combination of short-term rental assistance, medium-term rental assistance; or rental arrears (consisting of a one-time payment of up to 6 months of rent in arrears, including any late fees).

Participants may receive additional assistance if they have received less 24 months of rental assistance during any three-year period. Participants who have complied with all project requirements during their residence and have been a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, and who reasonably believe they are imminently threatened with harm from further domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking (which would include threats from a third-party, such as a friend or family member of the perpetrator of the violence), if they remain in the assisted unit, and are able to document the violence and basis for their belief, may retain the rental assistance and move to a different CoC's geographic area if they move out of the assisted unit to protect their health and safety. See recordkeeping requirements to ensure proper documentation of imminent threat of harm.

Short-term rent (1 to 3 months of assistance allowed at 100% rate of rent)

Short-term rental assistance (up to 3 months) is targeted to individuals and families with low-to- moderate housing barriers. These persons require minimal service intervention and limited financial assistance to secure and stabilize in permanent housing.

- A. The household will actively engage in an intensive case management plan, the goal of which will be to either increase income and/or reduce expenses such that the rental cost is no more than 80% of the household's net income.
 - The household should score over 20 points on the Housing Needs Assessment Matrix or a Southern Nevada Continuum of Care Centralized Coordinated Assessment and Intake System referral. Highest priority for the most appropriate program will be given to clients scoring over 30 points

- B. The household will be "re-evaluated" for eligibility at the end of the third month, not later than the 20th day of each month. At re-evaluation, household income cannot exceed 30% of AMI, otherwise financial assistance will cease. The client file must contain source documentation of income, including wage statements, tax returns, benefits statements, or bank account statements.
- C. Rental assistance may not be provided to a program participant receiving rental assistance from other public sources.
- Rental application fees are eligible for ESG reimbursement (under housing relocation & stabilization services).
- E. Security deposits may be paid but must equal no more than 2 months of rent (eligible under housing relocation & stabilization services).
- F. If necessary to obtain housing for household, last month's rent (of new move housing unit) may be paid. Assistance must not exceed one month's rent (eligible under housing relocation & stabilization services).
- G. Up to 6 months of arrears are allowed by HUD including any late fees, but must be one- time payment, per participant, per service.
- H. Each household receiving rental assistance must have a legally binding, written lease (between the owner and participant household) for the rental unit in their name.
- I. Agency must have a rental assistance agreement in place with the party to which payments are being made which must set forth the terms under which rental assistance will be provided.
- J. The housing unit where the household will reside must be affordable to the household. Rental rates must not exceed the Fair Market Rent specified for household size and rental rates must comply with HUD's rent reasonableness.
- K. Any housing units constructed before January 1, 1978 will be assessed for lead-based paint hazards.
- L. Housing unit must meet minimum habitability standards specified in 24 CFR 576.403(c).
- M. The first issuance of rental assistance can be up to 100% of the upcoming month's rent. Rent must be paid on a timely basis, in the case that any late fees are incurred in the new housing situation, those fees will not be paid with ESG funds.
- N. A second and third issuance of rental assistance can be considered when the household demonstrates compliance with and progress on intensive case management plan.
- O. If necessary, client receiving short term assistance may proceed to receive medium- term rent assistance (4-15 months of assistance). Client will continue to be re-assessed on a monthly basis. For each reassessment, the client file must contain source documentation of income, including wage statements, tax returns, benefits statements, or bank account statements.

Medium term rent (4 to 15 months of assistance)

Medium-term rental assistance is targeted to individuals and families with moderate-to-high housing barriers. These persons have multiple housing barriers that require longer periods of time to resolve and may require more intensive service interventions.

Month 4 can be paid at up to 100%, months thereafter can be paid at 75%.

- A. The household will actively engage in an intensive case management plan, the goal of which will be to either increase income and/or reduce expenses such that the rental cost is no more than 80% of the household's net income
- B. The household will be "re-evaluated" for eligibility monthly, not later than the 20th day of each month. For each re-evaluation, the client file must contain source documentation of income, including wage statements, tax returns, benefits statements, or bank account statements.

Amount of Rental Assistance

It is expected that the level of assistance will be based on the goal of providing the minimum level of support necessary for each household to achieve long-term housing stability. As such, case managers will use HUD's rental calculation process to determine the amount of rental assistance and the participant's contribution, which shall not exceed the following guidelines:

- Maximum Rental Assistance Amount: Grantees may provide up to 100% of the cost of rent to participants.
- Maximum Participant Share of Rent: Participants may pay up to 100% of the cost of rent.

Provision of rental assistance should be based on the participant's individualized need. Participants should be offered the minimum amount of rental assistance necessary for the participant to obtain and maintain stability in permanent housing. Based upon the initial evaluation of a participant's housing barriers, periodic re-evaluation, and the participant's progress meeting the goals of his or her housing stability plan, grantees have the discretion to determine and provide the appropriate level of rental assistance.

Gradually Declining Subsidies

Grantees shall institute a gradually declining rental assistance structure so that individuals and families will be confident that they can assume full responsibility of the monthly contracted rent, monthly utility costs, and other essential household costs at the end of the rental assistance period.

Payments

Grantees must make timely payment to each owner in accordance with the rental assistance agreement. All rent payments must go directly to a third-party (i.e., the landlord). Participants and grantees are solely responsible for paying any late-payment penalties that they incur, using non-CoC or ESG funds.

Administration of Funds

Participants receiving rental assistance funds pay their portion of rent directly to the landlord. The difference between the total rent and the amount paid by the participant is then paid by the grantee. Grantees may never cover the cost of the participant's rent if the participant fails to pay his or her portion of the rent.

The Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2017 (Public Law 115-31, approved May 5, 2017) authorizes nonprofit organizations to administer rental assistance to landlords in permanent housing. Administering rental assistance in the CoC Program is defined as: (1) contracting for and making rental assistance payments to the landlord/landowner; and (2) conducting the Housing Quality Standards inspections. The costs of administering rental assistance are considered service delivery costs of rental assistance and are eligible under the rental assistance budget line-item of the CoC Program.

Restriction for Participants Already Receiving Rental Assistance

Rental assistance cannot be provided to a participant who is already receiving rental assistance, or living in a housing unit receiving rental assistance or operating assistance through other Federal, State, or local sources.

Rapid Re-Housing: Housing Relocation and Stabilization Services

All clients will be assessed in the Clark County Coordinated Entry process. Housing relocation and stabilization services relating to rent:

- A. If necessary to move to an affordable housing unit, security deposits may be paid but must equal no more than 2 months of rent.
- B. If necessary to obtain housing for household, last month's rent (of new housing unit) may be paid. Assistance must not exceed one month's rent.

Housing relocation and stabilization services relating to utilities:

All clients will complete the Housing Needs Assessment Matrix, agency application and/or have a Southern Nevada Continuum of Care Centralized Coordinated Assessment and Intake System referral. Clients eligible the HUD definition of literally homeless and who score over 30 points on the Matrix or have a Southern Nevada Continuum of Care Centralized Coordinated Assessment and Intake System referral will receive priority for the most appropriate program over other eligible persons. Generally, restrictions are similar to the rent and utility restrictions under Homeless Prevention except that the maximum number of months client can be assisted is 24 months with rapid rehousing within a 3-year period.

- Up to 15 months of utility payments per participant, per service, including up to 6 months of arrearages, per service is allowed (must pay arrear as a one-time payment). Eligible utility services are gas, electric, water, and sewage. Household is also to receive assistance with rent in order to stabilize.
- The assisted household's existing arrears (of only up to 6 months) must be paid in full to bring their
 past due balance to zero. After the payment of any arrearages, client may receive utility assistance
 for new utility charges.
- Utility deposits to pay a standard utility deposit required by utility company are an eligible ESG expense (under housing relocation & stabilization services).
- The utility is for a service must be at a housing unit leased or otherwise contracted to the assisted household.
- The client file must contain evidence that the household has applied for assistance from one or more of
 the Energy Assistance Programs administered through the Division of Welfare and Supportive Services
 of the State of Nevada or through the United Way of Southern Nevada, or other public programs
 available for assistance with utility payments.

Rapid Re-Housing: Case Management

Participants must meet with a case manager not less than once per month to assist the participant in ensuring long-term housing stability. Additional case management will be provided on a case-by-case basis as necessitated by demonstrated need. Case managers should help to develop a plan to assist the participant retain permanent housing after the assistance ends, taking into account all relevant considerations, such as the participant's current or expected income and expenses, other public or private assistance for which the participant will be eligible and likely to receive, and the relative affordability of available housing in Southern Nevada.

Case management consists of costs associated with assessing, arranging, coordinating, and monitoring the delivery of individualized services.

ESG-RRH participants may receive case management for no more than 30 days during the period in which the participant is seeking permanent housing and no more than 24 months during the period in which the participant is living in permanent housing.

Rapid Re-Housing: Supportive Services

Case managers will assist each participant, as needed, to obtain appropriate supportive services, including assistance in obtaining permanent housing, medical and mental health treatment, counseling, and other services essential for achieving independent living. Grant funds may be used to pay for eligible supportive services that address the specific needs of participants. See Appendix B for a full list of eligible supportive services under ESG Rapid- Rehousing.

Rapid Re-Housing: Maximum Period and Frequency of Assistance

Any combination of *rental assistance* which includes short- and medium-term rental assistance (including rental arrears) AND security deposits and last month's rent (both eligible under housing relocation & stabilization services financial assistance costs) may not exceed 24 *months* during any 3-year period.

Rental assistance

 The maximum times a participant can receive non-consecutive short/ medium term rental assistance is 3 times per 24-month period. Rental arrears are the exception and are limited to 1 time assistance, per participant, within a 3-year period.

Housing relocation and stabilization services financial assistance costs (relating to rent)

- Rental application fees, security deposits, and last month's rent are limited to 1 time assistance, per participant, per service within a 3-year period.
- Security deposits cannot exceed 2 months of rent.
- Last month's rent may not exceed 1 month of rent.

Housing relocation and stabilization financial assistance costs (relating to utilities)

- The maximum times a participant can receive non-consecutive utility assistance with monthly utility bill payments is 3 times per 24-month period, per service.
- The maximum period a participant can receive utility assistance is 24 months within a 3- year period.
 The exception is arrears. Utility arrear payments (of up to 6 months) and deposits are limited to 1 time assistance, per service, per 3-year period.
- Deposits are limited to one-time assistance, per participant, per service, per 3 years.

Limits on Housing Stabilization and Relocation Services

Housing Stabilization and Relocation Services financial assistance policies and procedures addressed above in detail. This includes rental application fees, security deposits, last month's rent, utility deposits, utility payments and moving costs.

There will be no maximum monetary amount of assistance established per client as long as expenses are reasonable and comply with fair market costs.

<u>Under Homeless Prevention:</u> Any combination of *rental assistance* which includes short- and medium-term rental assistance and rental arrears, *housing relocation & stabilization services financial assistance costs* which includes security deposits, and last month's may not exceed 12 months during any 3-year period.

- The maximum times a participant can receive non-consecutive rental assistance is 3 times per 24month period. Arrears are the exception, which are limited to a one-time payment per service.
- Rental application fees, security deposits, and last month's rent are limited to a one-time payment per service per 3 years.
- Security deposits cannot exceed 2 months of rent.
- Last month's rent may not exceed 1 month of rent.
- The maximum times a participant can receive non-consecutive utility assistance for monthly
 utility bill payments is 3 times per 24-month period per service.
- Utility arrear payments (of up to 6 months) per participant per service per 3-year period.
- Deposits are limited to one-time assistance per participant per service per 3-year period.

<u>Under Rapid Re-Housing:</u> Any combination of *rental assistance* which includes short- and medium-term rental assistance and rental arrears, *housing relocation & stabilization services financial assistance costs* which includes security deposits, and last month's may not exceed 24 months during any 3-year period.

- The maximum times a participant can receive non-consecutive rental assistance is 3 times per 24-month period.
- Arrears are the exception, (rental application fees, security deposits, and last month's rent) which
 are limited to a one-time payment per service per 3-year period.
- Security deposits cannot exceed 2 months of rent.
- Last month's rent may not exceed 1 month of rent.
- Utility arrear payments (of up to 6 months) and deposits are limited to one-time assistance per service per 3-year period.

Note on *moving costs*: eligible costs are for moving expenses, such as truck rental or hiring a moving company. Assistance may include payment of temporary storage fees for up to 3 months as long as fees are accrued after the program participant begins receiving ESG assistance. Fees must be reasonable and occur after client intake and before the new move into a more affordable home. Moving and storage costs are limited to one-time assistance per client household per 3-year period.

<u>Housing stabilization and relocation service costs include:</u> housing search and placement, housing stability case management, mediation, legal services, and credit repair.

- A. Housing stability case management is limited to 24 months during the period the program participant is living in permanent housing.
- B. All other service costs are limited to 24 months per 3-year period on service costs assistance for program participants receiving homeless prevention assistance, and 24 months per 3- year period for program participants receiving rapid re-housing assistance.

Additional Rapid Re-Housing Program Requirements

Under the ESG Interim Rule, rental assistance is subject to additional requirements, including rent reasonableness and Fair Market Rent (FMR) standards, housing standards, lease agreements and rental assistance agreements, and termination policies.

Rent Requirements

Rental assistance must be sufficient to ensure long-term housing stability for the participant, both for the duration of his or her participation and upon exit. Thus, the purpose is to place participants into housing that will be sustainable in the long-term. In addition, case managers are expected to work with participants to review household budgets and ensure that households can maintain their housing upon completion of the program.

Rent Reasonableness

For participants receiving rental assistance, unit rent may not exceed HUD's rent reasonableness standard. This means that the rent charged for a unit must be reasonable in relation to rents currently being charged for comparable units in the private, unassisted market and must not be in excess of rents currently being charged by the owner for comparable unassisted units. These rent restrictions are intended to help ensure that participants can remain in their housing after assistance ends.

Rent reasonableness requirements do not apply when a participant receives only financial assistance or services under the ESG Program's Housing Stabilization and Relocation Services. This includes rental application fees, security deposits, an initial payment of "last month's rent," utility payments or deposits, moving costs, housing search and placement, housing stability case management, landlord-tenant mediation, legal services, and credit repair.

Fair Market Rent

Household rent for participants receiving ESG-funded rental assistance must not exceed the FMR established by HUD. Current FMR guidelines may be found online at https://www.huduser.gov/portal/datasets/fmr.html.

As with rent reasonableness, FMR requirements do not apply when a participant receives only financial assistance or services under the ESG Program's Housing Stabilization and Relocation Services.

Please refer to the Southern Nevada Rapid Rehousing Written Standards for more details: https://helphopehome.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/02/Revised-Southern-Nevada-RRH-Written-Standards-02-24-20.pdf

X. Housing Standards

Lead-Based Paint Requirements: All HUD-funded programs with housing units occupied by participants are required to incorporate lead-based paint remediation and disclosure requirements. Generally, these provisions require the recipient to screen for, disclose the existence of, and take reasonable precautions regarding the presence of lead-based paint in leased or assisted units constructed prior to 1978.

CoC-funded units are required to incorporate HUD regulations in 24 CFR part 35, subparts A, B, K, and R. ESG-funded projects are required to incorporate the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 USC 4821-4846), the Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992 (42 USC 4851-4846), and 24 CFR part 35, subparts A, B, H, J, K, M, and R in the unit.

Habitability Standards: Housing for all ESG program participants receiving rental assistance must met HUD minimum habitability standards for permanent housing. Grantees must document compliance with this standard by signing and completing a Habitability Standards Checklist before the participant signs the lease and before the grantee provides any ESG rental assistance or services specific to the unit. In addition, grantees must inspect all units at least annually to ensure that the units continue to meet habitability standards.

Rental Assistance Agreements: In addition to a lease between the participant and owner, the ESG Interim Rule also requires a rental assistance agreement between the grantee and the property owner. The grantee may make rental assistance payments only to an owner with whom the grantee has entered into a rental assistance agreement. To help establish a relationship with a participant's landlord, CoC grantees may also choose to require a rental assistance agreement.

The rental assistance agreement must set forth the terms under which rental assistance will be provided, including the requirements of ESG assistance. In addition, the rental assistance.

XI. Additional Minimum Standards and Requirements

Nondiscrimination, Equal Opportunity, Affirmative Outreach, and Fair Housing

Southern Nevada's ESG recipients – the City of Las Vegas, the City of North Las Vegas, and Clark County - do not tolerate discrimination on the basis of any protected class (including actual or perceived race, color, religion, national origin, sex, age, familial status, disability, sexual orientation, gender identity, or marital status) during any phase of the CE process. Some programs may be forced to limit enrollment based on requirements imposed by their funding sources and/or state or federal law. All such programs will avoid discrimination to the maximum extent allowed by all funding sources and their authorizing legislation. All aspects of the Southern Nevada CE system will comply with all Federal, State, and local Fair Housing laws and regulations. Participants will not be "steered" toward any particular housing facility or neighborhood because of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability, or the presence of children. All locations where persons are likely to access or attempt to access the CE System will include signs or brochures displayed in prominent locations informing participants of their right to file a non-discrimination complaint and containing the contact information needed to file a nondiscrimination complaint. Maximum standards shall comply with the requirements for nondiscrimination, equal opportunity, and affirmative outreach processes.

Faith-Based Activities

Minimum standards for faith-based activities (24 CFR 576.406) are:

Providers receiving ESG funding shall not engage in inherently religious activities as part of the ESG-funded programs or services. Such activities must be offered separately from ESG -funded programs and services and participation must be voluntary.

Environmental Review

Before any funds are committed, an environmental review will be conducted of all ESG-funded grantee project site(s) to demonstrate there are no hazardous materials present that could affect the health and safety of the occupants. Environmental reviews will be acceptable for a 1 to 5-year time period, depending on the project type. The costs of carrying out environmental review responsibilities are an eligible use of administrative funds. All ESG activities are subject to environmental review under HUD's environmental regulations in 24 CFR part 58.

The subrecipient, or any contractor of the subrecipient, may not acquire, rehabilitate, convert, lease, repair, dispose of, demolish, or construct property for an ESG project, or commit or expend HUD or local funds for ESG eligible activities, until an environmental review under 24 CFR part 58 has been performed and the recipient has received HUD approval of the property.

Termination Policies

If a program participant violates program requirements or no longer meets minimum eligibility requirements for program assistance, the subrecipient may terminate assistance. To terminate assistance, the minimum required formal process must consist of:

- A. A written notice to the program participant containing a clear statement of the reasons for termination; and
- B. A review of the decision, in which the program participant is given the opportunity to present written or oral objections before a person other than the person (or a subordinate of that person) who made or approved the termination decision; and
- C. Prompt written notice of the final decision to the program participant.

Termination does not bar the subrecipient from providing further assistance at a later date to the same family or individual.

Grievance Policy

Each ESG funded organization shall have a grievance procedure and shall implement the procedure when applicable.

XII. Best Practices for ESG Programs

Housing First

Housing First is a proven approach in which all people experiencing homelessness are believed to be "housing-ready" and are provided with permanent housing immediately, with minimal or no preconditions, behavioral contingencies, or barriers (e.g., income, sobriety, etc.). Effectively implementing a Housing First approach requires prioritizing people with the highest needs and vulnerabilities, engaging more landlords and property owners, and making our projects client- centered spaces without barriers to entering or remaining in the project. All CoC and ESG grantees are expected to minimize barriers to entry to the maximum extent permitted under their individual grant agreements and take appropriate steps to implement the Housing First approach.

Low-Barrier Programming

Entry requirements can act as a barrier to services and housing placement, leaving our most vulnerable and chronic homeless unable to access services. Low Barrier Housing is housing in which a minimum number of expectations are placed on people who wish to live there. The aim is to have as few barriers as possible to allow more people access to services. Low barrier programs typically follow a harm reduction philosophy which focuses on the risks and consequences of a particular behavior, rather than on the behavior itself. With regard to housing, harm reduction means that tenants have access to services to help them address their substance use issues. It is based on the understanding that recovery is a long process, and that users need a stable living arrangement in order to increase the likelihood for success in overcoming their addictions. The focus centers on being healthier rather than on the unrealistic goal of being perfectly healthy right away.

The following are some common eligibility and continued stay criteria for emergency and permanent housing for clients that can be considered "low threshold":

- Homeless
- Age 18 or older
- Ambulatory and not requiring hospital or nursing home care
- Agree to be nonviolent
- Agree to not use or sell drugs or illegal substances on the premises
- Agree to treat other clients, staff, and the property with respect
- Agree to obey fire and other safety regulations.

Below are examples of criteria that providers are recommended NOT to include when determining eligibility:

- Sobriety and/or commitment to be drug free
- Requirements to take medication if the client has a mental illness
- Participation in religious services or activities
- Participation in drug treatment services (including NA/AA)
- Proof of citizenship
- Identification
- Referral from the police, hospital, or other service provider (as opposed to self-referrals)
- Payment or ability to pay (though saving plans are encouraged)
- Complete a period of time in a transitional housing, outpatient, inpatient, or other institutional setting/treatment facility
- Maintain sobriety or abstinence from alcohol and/or drugs
- Comply with medication
- Achieve psychiatric symptom stability
- Show willingness to comply with a treatment plan that addresses sobriety, abstinence, and/or medication compliance
- Agree to face-to-face visits with staff

Appendix A. Definitions of "Homeless" and "At-Risk of Homelessness" for the ESG Program

HUD Definition of Homelessness

Literally Homeless (Category 1 of the HUD Homeless Definition). An individual or family who lacks a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence, meaning:

- A. An individual or family with a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not designed for or ordinarily used as a regular sleeping accommodation for human beings, including a car, park, abandoned building, bus or train station, airport, or camping ground;
- B. An individual or family living in a supervised publicly or privately operated shelter designated to provide temporary living arrangements (including congregate shelters, transitional housing, and hotels and motels paid for by charitable organizations or by federal, State, or local government programs for low-income individuals); or,
- C. An individual who is exiting an institution where he or she resided for 90 days or less and who resided in an emergency shelter or place not meant for human habitation immediately before entering that institution.

At Imminent Risk of Homelessness (Category 2 of the HUD Homeless Definition). An individual or family, who will imminently lose their primary nighttime residence, provided that:

- A. The primary nighttime residence will be lost within 14 days of the date of application for homeless assistance;
- B. No subsequent residence has been identified; and,
- C. The individual or family lacks the resources or support networks, e.g., family, friends, faith-based or other social networks, needed to obtain other permanent housing.

Homeless Under Other Federal Statutes (Category 3 of the HUD Homeless Definition). Unaccompanied youth under 25 years of age, or families with children and youth, who do not otherwise qualify as homeless under this definition, but who:

- A. Are defined as homeless under section 387 of the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act (42 U.S.C. 5732a), section 637 of the Head Start Act (42 U.S.C. 9832), section 41403 of the Violence Against Women Act of 1994 (42 U.S.C. 14043e-2), section 330(h) of the Public Health Service Act (42 U.S.C. 254b(h)), section 3 of the Food and Nutrition Act of 2008 (7 U.S.C. 2012), section 17(b) of the Child Nutrition Act of 1966 (42 U.S.C. 1786(b)), or section 725 of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. 11434a);
- Have not had a lease, ownership interest, or occupancy agreement in permanent housing at any time during the 60 days immediately preceding the date of application for homeless assistance;
- C. Have experienced persistent instability as measured by two moves or more during the 60-day period immediately preceding the date of applying for homeless assistance; and,
- D. Can be expected to continue in such status for an extended period of time because of chronic disabilities; chronic physical health or mental health conditions; substance addiction; histories of domestic violence or childhood abuse (including neglect); the presence of a child or youth with a disability; or two or more barriers to employment, which include the lack of a high school degree or General Education Development (GED), illiteracy, low English proficiency, a history of incarceration or detention for criminal activity, and a history of unstable employment.

Fleeing Domestic Abuse or Violence (Category 4 of the HUD Homeless Definition). Domestic violence and other dangerous or life-threatening conditions.

Any individual or family who:

- A. Is fleeing, or is attempting to flee, domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, stalking, or other dangerous or life-threatening conditions that relate to violence against the individual or a family member, including a child, that has either taken place within the individual's or family's primary nighttime residence or has made the individual or family afraid to return to their primary nighttime residence;
- B. Has no other residence; and,
- C. Lacks the resources or support networks, e.g., family, friends, and faith-based or other social networks, to obtain other permanent housing.
- D. Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, the program shall consider any individual or family to be homeless, who is fleeing, or is attempting to flee, domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, stalking, or other dangerous or life-threatening conditions in the individual's or family's current housing situation, including where the health and safety of children are jeopardized, and who have no other residence and lack the resources or support networks to obtain other permanent housing.

ESG Program Definitions of "Homeless" and "At-Risk of Homelessness"

At risk of homelessness means:

- A. An individual or family who:
 - 1. Has an annual income below 30 percent of median family income for the area, as determined by HUD:
 - 2. Does not have sufficient resources or support networks, e.g., family, friends, faith- based or other social networks, immediately available to prevent them from moving to an emergency shelter or another place described in paragraph (1) of the "homeless" definition in this section; and
 - 3. Meets one of the following conditions:
 - a. Has moved because of economic reasons two or more times during the 60 days immediately preceding the application for homelessness prevention assistance;
 - b. Is living in the home of another because of economic hardship;
 - Has been notified in writing that their right to occupy their current housing or living situation will be terminated within 21 days after the date of application for assistance;
 - d. Lives in a hotel or motel and the cost of the hotel or motel stay is not paid by charitable organizations or by Federal, State, or local government programs for low-income individuals;
 - Lives in a single-room occupancy or efficiency apartment unit in which there reside more than two persons or lives in a larger housing unit in which there reside more than 1.5 persons reside per room, as defined by the U.S. Census Bureau;
 - Is exiting a publicly funded institution, or system of care (such as a health-care facility, a mental health facility, foster care or other youth facility, or correction program or institution);
 or
 - g. Otherwise lives in housing that has characteristics associated with instability and an increased risk of homelessness, as identified in the recipient's approved consolidated plan;
 - B. A child or youth who does not qualify as "homeless" under this section, but qualifies as "homeless" under section 387(3) of the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act (42 U.S.C. 5732a(3)), section 637(11) of the Head Start Act (42 U.S.C. 9832(11)), section 41403(6) of the Violence Against Women Act of 1994 (42 U.S.C. 14043e-2(6)), section 330(h)(5)(A) of the Public Health Service Act (42 U.S.C. 254b(h)(5)(A)), section 3(m) of the Food and Nutrition Act of 2008 (7 U.S.C. 2012(m)), or section 17(b)(15) of the Child Nutrition Act of 1966 (42 U.S.C. 1786(b)(15)); or

C. A child or youth who does not qualify as "homeless" under this section, but qualifies as "homeless" under section 725(2) of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. 11434a(2)), and the parent(s) or guardian(s) of that child or youth if living with her or him.

Homeless means:

- A. An individual or family who lacks a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence, meaning:
 - 1. An individual or family with a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not designed for or ordinarily used as a regular sleeping accommodation for human beings, including a car, park, abandoned building, bus or train station, airport, or camping ground;
 - An individual or family living in a supervised publicly or privately operated shelter designated to
 provide temporary living arrangements (including congregate shelters, transitional housing, and
 hotels and motels paid for by charitable organizations or by federal, state, or local government
 programs for low-income individuals); or
 - An individual who is exiting an institution where he or she resided for 90 days or less and who
 resided in an emergency shelter or place not meant for human habitation immediately before
 entering that institution;
- B. An individual or family who will imminently lose their primary nighttime residence, provided that:
 - 1. The primary nighttime residence will be lost within 14 days of the date of application for homeless assistance;
 - No subsequent residence has been identified; and
 - The individual or family lacks the resources or support networks, e.g., family, friends, faith-based or other social networks, needed to obtain other permanent housing;
- C. Unaccompanied youth under 25 years of age, or families with children and youth, who do not otherwise qualify as homeless under this definition, but who:
 - Are defined as homeless under section 387 of the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act (42 U.S.C. 5732a), section 637 of the Head Start Act (42 U.S.C. 9832), section 41403 of the Violence Against Women Act of 1994 (42 U.S.C. 14043e-2), section 330(h) of the Public Health Service Act (42 U.S.C. 254b(h)), section 3 of the Food and Nutrition Act of 2008 (7 U.S.C. 2012), section 17(b) of the Child Nutrition Act of 1966 (42 U.S.C. 1786(b)) or section 725 of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. 11434a);
 - Have not had a lease, ownership interest, or occupancy agreement in permanent housing at any time during the 60 days immediately preceding the date of application for homeless assistance;
 - Have experienced persistent instability as measured by two moves or more during the 60-day period immediately preceding the date of applying for homeless assistance; and
 - 4. Can be expected to continue in such status for an extended period of time because of chronic disabilities, chronic physical health or mental health conditions, substance addiction, histories of domestic violence or childhood abuse (including neglect), the presence of a child or youth with a disability, or two or more barriers to employment, which include the lack of a high school degree or General Education Development (GED), illiteracy, low English proficiency, a history of incarceration or detention for criminal activity, and a history of unstable employment; or
- D. Any individual or family who:
 - 1. Is fleeing, or is attempting to flee, domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, stalking, or other dangerous or life-threatening conditions that relate to violence against the individual or a family member, including a child, that has either taken place within the individual's or family's primary nighttime residence or has made the individual or family afraid to return to their primary nighttime residence;
 - 2. Has no other residence; and
 - Lacks the resources or support networks, e.g., family, friends, faith-based or other social networks, to obtain other permanent housing.

Appendix B. ESG Rapid Re-Housing Eligible Supportive Services

Housing Services and Related Services

Assisting participants in locating, obtaining, and retaining suitable permanent housing, including:

- Housing search
- Tenant counseling
- Understanding leases
- Arranging for utilities
- Making moving arrangements
- Assessment of housing barriers, needs, and preferences
- Development of an action plan for locating housing
- Outreach to and negotiation with landlords
- Assessment of housing for compliance with ESG requirements for habitability, lead-based paint, and rent reasonableness
- Assistance with submitting rental applications

Case Management

Assessing, arranging, coordinating, and monitoring the delivery of individualized services to facilitate housing stability for a participant who resides in permanent housing or to assist a participant in overcoming immediate barriers to obtaining housing by, for example:

- Providing ongoing risk assessment and safety planning to victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking
- Using the Coordinated Entry System
- Counseling
- Developing, securing, and coordinating services
- Obtaining Federal, State, and local benefits
- Monitoring and evaluating participant progress
- Providing information and referrals to other providers
- Developing an individualized housing and service plan, including planning a path to permanent housing stability
- Conducting required annual re-evaluation(s)

Legal Services

Costs of resolving a legal problem that prohibits a participant from obtaining or retaining permanent housing, including:

- Client intake
- Preparation of case for trial
- Provision of legal advice
- Representation at hearings
- Counseling
- Filing fees and other necessary court costs

Legal services are subject to the following provisions:

- Eligible Billing Arrangements: CoC funds may be used only for legal advice from and representation by licensed attorneys and by person(s) under the supervision of licensed attorneys. Costs may be based on: (1) hourly fees; or (2) fees based on the actual service performed (i.e., fee-for-service) but only if the cost would be less than the cost of hourly fees.
- Ineligible Billing Arrangements: Funds must not be used for legal advice and representation purchased through retainer fee arrangements or contingency fee arrangements.

- Eligible Subject Matters: Landlord/tenant disputes; child support; guardianship; paternity; emancipation; legal separation; orders of protection and other civil remedies for victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking; appeal of veterans and public benefit claim denials; resolution of outstanding criminal warrants.
- Ineligible Subject Matters: Legal services related to immigration and citizenship matter, or related to mortgages and homeownership.

Moving Costs

Costs such as truck rental or hiring a moving company, including payment of temporary storage fees for up to 3 months

Utility Deposits

Standard utility deposit that the utility company requires of all customers.

Mediation

Mediation between the participant and the landlord/landowner or person(s) with whom the participant is living.

Credit Repair

- Credit counseling
- Accessing a free personal credit report
- Resolving personal credit issues
- Other services needed to assist with critical skills related to household budgeting and money management

Please refer to the Southern Nevada Rapid Rehousing Written Standards for more detail: https://helphopehome.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/02/Revised-Southern-Nevada-RRH- Written-Standards-02-24-20.pdf

Attachment 5

FUNDING SOURCES

Please list all funds used to support the program; this information is required if a Federal grant award letter has been received. In order to comply with 2 CFR Part 200 Subpart D, section 200.331, list the name of the Federal awarding agency, pass-through entity, and contact information for awarding official.

#	Federal Awarding Agency	Amount of Grant		Awarding Official		Contact Number	
Ex.	Clark County ESG Funds	\$	50,000	Ex: Tim	<u>Burch</u>	(702) 455-	5025
1.	Clark County ESG-CV Funds	\$		8		16	
2.	Clark County CDBG-CV Funds	\$					
3.	Clark County HOME Funds	\$				(
4.	Other Federal Funds: ESG-CV State	\$				11	
5.	Other Federal Funds:	\$					
6.	Other Federal Funds:	\$				-	
7.	Other Federal Funds:	\$				-	
8.	Other County Funds: AB309	\$		_			
9.	Other Funds:	\$				-	
10.	Other Funds:	\$_		-			

TOTAL: \$_____

Attachment 6

ESG-CV SPECIAL CONDITIONS & WAIVERS

Introduction

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) issued two memorandum (1) on April 1, 2020 and memorandum (2) on May 22, 2020 providing regulatory waivers of certain Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG), and Housing for Persons With AIDS (HOPWA) requirements to help:

- Prevent the spread of COVID-19
- Provide additional supports to individuals and families eligible for ESG, and
- HOPWA assistance who are economically impacted by COVID-19.

Both grantees and recipients MUST update their program records to include written documentation of the specific conditions that justify the recipient's use of the waiver, consistent with the justifications and applicability provisions provided in the COVID-19 Waiver Memorandum. Provisions that are not specifically waived remain in full effect.

Special Conditions

The Emergency Solution Grant (ESG-CV) supplemental allocation provided under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act ("CARES Act") (Pub. L. No. 116-136), which was signed onto law on March 27, 2020 must be used specifically to prevent, prepare for, and respond to the coronavirus pandemic (COVID-19) among individuals and families who are homeless or receiving homeless assistance; as well as supporting additional homeless assistance and homelessness prevention activities to mitigate the impacts of COVID-19. These funds may be used to provide the eligible ESG-CV activities identified at 24 CFR Part 576. As provided by the CARES Act, these supplemental funds may be used to cover or reimburse allowable costs incurred by a State or locality before the award of funding (including prior to the signing of the CARES Act) to prevent, prepare for, and respond to COVID-19; The funds are not subject to the spending cap on emergency shelter and outreach under 24 CFR 576.100(b)(1); Up to 10 percent of funds may be used for administrative costs, as opposed to 7.5 percent as provided by 24 CFR 576.108(a); The funds are exempt from the ESG match requirements, including 24 CFR 576.201; The funds are not subject to the consultation and citizen participation requirements that otherwise apply to the Emergency Solutions Grants, however each recipient must publish how its allocation has and will be used, at a minimum, on the Internet at the appropriate Government web site or through other electronic media; The funds may be used to provide homelessness prevention assistance (as authorized under 24 CFR 576.103 or subsequent HUD notices) to any individual or family who does not have income higher than HUD's Very Low-Income Limit for the area and meets the criteria in paragraphs (1)(ii) and (1)(iii) of the "at risk of homelessness" definition in 24 CFR 576.3; That recipients may deviate from applicable procurement standards when using these funds to procure goods and services to prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus, notwithstanding 24 CFR 576.407(f) and 2 CFR 200.317-200.326; While encouraged to offer treatment and supportive services when necessary to assist vulnerable homeless populations, individuals and families experiencing homelessness must not be required to receive treatment or perform any other prerequisite activities as a condition for receiving shelter, housing, or other services for which these funds are used, notwithstanding 24 CFR 576.401(e).

SUBRECIPIENTS must maintain documentation demonstrating when they began preparing for COVID- 19 and must maintain documentation to support any costs incurred by the SUBRECIPIENT that plans to cover or reimburse with CARES Act grant funding. SUBRECIPIENT policies and procedures will need to be updated to cover ESG-CV CARES Act compliance. Programming information and client documentation will need to be updated to cover ESG-CV CARES Act compliance.

Duplication of Benefits: ESG-CV Project Sponsors must establish and maintain adequate procedures to prevent any duplication of benefits with CARES Act funds. Section 312 of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. 5155), prohibits the duplication of benefits for programs that provide financial assistance to people or entities suffering losses as a result of a Federally declared disaster or emergency. The duplication of benefits occurs when Federal financial assistance is provided to a person or entity through a program to address losses resulting from a Federally-declared emergency or disaster, and the person or entity has received (or would receive, by acting reasonably to obtain available assistance) financial assistance for the same costs from any other source (including insurance), and the total amount received exceeds the total need for those costs.

Waivers

In addition, the Act authorizes the Secretary to grant waivers of and specify alternative requirements for statutes and regulations the Secretary administers in connection with the use of ESG funds (except for requirements related to fair housing, nondiscrimination, labor standards, and the environment). These waivers and alternative requirements can be issued when necessary to expedite and facilitate the use of funds to prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus. HUD has made available the following waivers that are applicable to ESG-CV funding:

CPD Memo: Availability of Additional Waivers for CPD Grant Programs to Prevent the Spread of COVID- 19 and Mitigate Economic Impacts Caused by COVID-19 (5/22/2020)

- Waiver Applicability to ESG-CV Made all ESG waivers provided in 3/31/2020 memo applicable to ESG-CV
- Housing Stability Case Management Original waiver (see below) is extended an additional 3 months beginning on the date of the memorandum (5/22/2020)

CPD Memo: Availability of Waivers of CPD Grant Program and Consolidated Plan Requirements to Prevent the Spread of COVID-19 and Mitigate Economic Impacts Caused by COVID-19 for CoC, ESG, and HOPWA (3/31/2020)

- HMIS Lead Activities- Allows any recipient to use ESG funds to pay costs of upgrading or enhancing
 its local HMIS to incorporate data on ESG Program participants and ESG activities related to COVID19
- Re-evaluations for Homelessness Prevention Assistance For up to the 2-year period beginning on the date of the waiver memorandum (3/31/2020), the required frequency of re-evaluations for homelessness prevention assistance under section 576.401(b) is waived
- Housing Stability Case Management For the 2-month period beginning on the date of the waiver memorandum (3/31/2020), the required frequency of housing stability case management for homelessness prevention and rapid Rehousing assistance is waived
- Restriction of Rental Assistance to Units At or Below FMR For the 6-month period beginning on the date of the waiver memorandum (3/31/2020), the FMR restriction is waived for any individual or family receiving Rapid Rehousing or Homelessness Prevention assistance who executes a lease for a unit

Please note that these program policies and procedures are subject to change and may include periodic updates at any time, based on further guidance from HUD or public health officials.

ESG COVID-19 WAIVERS

Re-evaluations for Homelessness Prevention Assistance

Waiver

Requirement: Homelessness prevention assistance is subject to re-evaluation of each program participant's eligibility need for assistance not less than once every 3 months.

Citation: 24 CFR 576.401(b)

Explanation: The ESG regulations at 24 CFR 576.401(b) requires recipients or subrecipients providing homelessness prevention assistance to re-evaluate the program participant's eligibility, and the types and amounts of assistance the program participant needs not less than once every 3 months.

Justification: Waiving re-evaluation requirement for homelessness prevention assistance as specified below is necessary to help program participants remain stable in housing during the economic uncertainty caused by COVID-19.

Applicability: The required frequency of re-evaluations for homelessness prevention assistance under section 576.401(b) is waived for up to 2-years beginning on the date of this memorandum (*April 1, 2020 through April 1, 2022*), so long as the recipient or subrecipient conducts the required re-evaluations not less than once every 6 months.

Execution

ESG recipients are still encouraged to re-evaluate the program participant's eligibility for homelessness prevention assistance.

Given, the current crisis, ESG recipients are allowed to waive re-evaluation of each program participant's eligibility need for assistance not less than once every 3 months and must conduct the required re-evaluation not less than once every 6 months until *April 1, 2022*. ESG recipients must include careful documentation including:

- A. Note in the files of affected clients
- B. Documentation demonstrating need to keep participant housed during COVID-19 pandemic
- C. Copy of the waiver notification
- D. Documentation demonstrating compliance with the 6-month requirement

Monitoring

On-site or remote compliance monitoring will consist of case file reviews for adequate re- evaluation documentation. ESG recipients must ensure that any re-evaluations conducted between the specified two-year period (April 1, 2020 through April 1, 2022) are documented in the case file and completed no less than once every 6 months.

Housing Stability Case Management

Waiver |

Requirement: Program participants receiving homelessness prevention or rapid Rehousing assistance must meet with a case manager not less than once per month, unless certain statutory prohibitions apply.

Citation: 24 CFR 576.401(e)

Explanation: Under 24 CFR 576.401(e), the recipients or subrecipients must require program participants to meet with a case manager not less than once per month to assist them in ensuring long-term housing stability, unless the Violence Against Women Act of 1994 or Family Violence Prevention and Services Act prohibits the recipient or subrecipient from making its shelter or housing conditional on the participant's acceptance of services.

Justification: Recipients are reporting limited staff capacity as staff members are home for a variety of reasons related to COVID-19 (e.g., quarantining, children home from school, working elsewhere in the community to manage the COVID-19 response). In addition, not all program participants have capacity to meet via phone or internet. Waiving the monthly case management requirement as specified below will allow recipients to provide case management on an as needed basis and reduce the possible spread and harm of COVID-19.

Applicability: This waiver is in effect for two months beginning on the date of the memorandum

- (1) (June 1, 2020). This waiver is in effect for an additional three months beginning on the date of memorandum
- (2) (August 22, 2020).

Execution

ESG recipients are still encouraged to conduct case management using remote methods, when warranted. For example, this may include conducting program functions through phone calls, video-conference calls, and exchange of information through emails. When implementing remote work methods, programs must include careful documentation of all interactions:

- A. Note in the files of affected clients; and
- B. Documentation of limited staff capacity shelter in-place order, or similar COVID-19 related impediment

If program participants do not have the capacity to meet via phone or internet, the ESG recipient is allowed to waive the monthly case management requirement as specified above. The ESG recipient must include careful documentation (including a note in the files of affected clients) of the reasonable adjustment made and conduct an in-person case management visit a later date succeeding (June 1, 2020) extended to (August 22, 2020).

Monitoring

On-site or remote compliance monitoring will consist of case file reviews to ensure that efforts to conduct case management with reasonable adjustments are adequately documented. This applies to in-person meetings through the date specified (June 1, 2020) extended to (August 22, 2020). Documentation should also include the date, time, and type of contact, including attempted contact(s). For cases where program participants do not have the capacity to meet via phone or internet, case files should document this information and reason why the meeting was waived.

Restriction of Rental Assistance to Units with Rent at or Below FMR

<u>Waiver</u>

Requirement: Restriction of rental assistance to units with rent at or below FMR.

Citation: 24 CFR 576.106(d)(1)

Explanation: Under 24 CFR 576.106(d)(1), rental assistance cannot be provided unless the total rent is equal to or less than the FMR established by HUD, as provided under 24 CFR Part 888, and complies with HUD's standard of rent reasonableness, as established under 24 CFR 982.507.

Justification: Quickly moving people into permanent housing is especially critical in preventing the spread of COVID-19. Waiving the limit on rental assistance to rents that are equal to or less than the FMR, established by HUD, will assist recipients and subrecipients in more quickly locating additional units to house individuals and families experiencing homelessness.

Applicability: The FMR restriction is waived for any individual or family receiving Rapid Rehousing or Homelessness Prevention assistance who executes a lease for a unit during the 6- month period beginning on the date of this memorandum (*April 1, 2020 through October 1, 2020*). The ESG recipient or subrecipient must still ensure that the units in which ESG assistance is provided to these individuals and families meet the rent reasonableness standard.

Execution

ESG recipients are still encouraged to identify suitable housing that meets Fair Market Rent (FMR).

If after conducting a housing search, housing that complies with FMR cannot be secured, then the ESG recipient is allowed to waive FMR rent standard until *October 1, 2020* as specified above. If this situation arises, the ESG recipient must thoroughly document their housing search efforts and note the reasonable adjustment made. The ESG recipient then must conduct a rent reasonable assessment and ensure that the rents being charged for the assisted units are reasonable, as described in the ESG regulations 24 CFR 982.4. Reasonableness is tested in two ways:

- A. REQUIREMENT ONE: First, the rent charged for the unit must be reasonable in relation to rents currently being charged for comparable units in the private unassisted market.
- B. REQUIREMENT TWO: Second, the rent charged cannot be higher than rents currently charged by the owner (landlord) for comparable unassisted units.

The purpose of the requirement is to ensure that no property owner artificially inflates assisted units over comparable unassisted units. At no time should the rent to the owner exceed the reasonable rental amount.

How to Conduct Rent Reasonableness Assessments:

The ESG recipient must ensure that each unit assisted is rent reasonable throughout the tenancy of the qualified household. To this end, the ESG recipient should have established policies on how rent reasonableness will be determined and documented. The ESG recipient must document the decision-making process and the decision in the tenant's file:

- A. Documentation outlining the recipient's difficulty in obtaining housing at the current rent standard;
- B. A copy of the lease clearly displaying the date of execution;
- C. A note to file noting the date of the waiver memo and its application to the client's lease; and
- D. A completed rent reasonable analysis

The ESG recipient must document for each unit that a reasonable rent is being charged compared to other units in the private market and must verify, if applicable, that the rent of a unit is reasonable compared to the rent of other comparable unassisted units owned by the same landlord.

A. MEETING REQUIREMENT ONE:

The rent charged for the unit must be reasonable in relation to rents currently being charged for comparable units in the private unassisted can be determined by one of the following two options for determining rent reasonableness:

Review of comparable units. This is usually the best option for smaller programs or for programs that serve a large or varied geographic region that may be different than any one Public Housing Agency (PHA). A review of rent reasonableness can often be completed during the HOPWA habitability standards review. The rental assistance program should develop clear policies detailing how the reviews will be completed. The policies should include resources regarding factors to consider when comparing units, finding comparable units, and methods of documentation.

Comparison factors. Factors to consider in conducting the assessment include the following:

- Location of the unit: In what neighborhood is the unit located? What are the distances to public transportation, shopping, work, and other services?
- Size of unit: How many bedrooms does the unit have?
- Type of unit: Is the unit unattached or attached? Is it in a large or small? complex? Is it a singleor multi-family unit?
- Age of unit: When was the unit built?
- Utilities: Which utilities, if any, are included in the rent of the unit?

These first five factors are often the most important for determining variances in rent. The following factors usually do not create substantial differences in rent, although they are addressed in the lease and can affect how quickly a unit leases:

- Amenities: Is a washer/dryer, dishwasher, or new carpet provided in the unit? Do tenants need to pay for washing clothes and linens (in the building or at a self- service laundromat)?
- Housing services: Are services provided to tenants?
- Maintenance: Does the lease specify some form of tenant responsibility for
- Maintenance of the unit (e.g., lawn care)?

Locating units for comparison. There are a variety of methods for locating units for comparison, including newspaper advertisements, Internet sites (e.g., www.craigslist.org, www.rent.com), and apartment guides. Based on the factors discussed above, each unit should be reviewed with at least three other comparable units. When comparable units are not available, best efforts should be made to find similar units in other complexes or in similar geographic areas that are comparable to the location of the unit to be assisted.

Documenting the comparison. A variety of forms may be used to document the rent reasonableness of assisted units. The form should address the factors discussed above and should compare the unit to be assisted with three other comparable units. The contract rent for the unit to be assisted should be at or below the contract rent of the three comparable units. If the unit rent is determined to be unreasonable, rental assistance should not be provided for this unit.

B. MEETING REQUIREMENT TWO: Second, the rent charged cannot be higher than rents currently charged by the owner (landlord) for comparable unassisted units. In addition to ensuring the rent reasonableness of a unit compared to other private market units, staff must ensure the rent of a unit is reasonable compared to the rent of other comparable unassisted units owned by the landlord. To meet this second reasonableness requirement, staff must request certification from the landlord that the rent being charged for the assisted unit is comparable to rents charged for other comparable unassisted units owned by the landlord. The landlord should provide previous rent charged for the unit to be assisted, current rent charged by the landlord for comparable unassisted units, and estimated rent for a comparable unassisted unit, if the unit was vacant. If the requested rent is not reasonable, meaning the rent is not comparable to rent charged for other comparable units owned by the landlord, assistance may not be provided for this unit unless an adjustment in the requested rent is made.

Monitoring

On-site or remote monitoring will consist of ESG agency policy review to ensure recipient has established policies on how rent reasonableness will be determined and documented. Monitoring will also include case file reviews of cases where recipients receiving Rapid Rehousing or Homeless Prevention assistance who execute a lease during the period specified (April 1, 2020 through October 1, 2020). Tenant case files should include documentation that demonstrates rent reasonableness checks were conducted. This is including rent charged compared to other units in the private market and, if applicable, that the rent is reasonable compared to the rent of other comparable unassisted units owned by the same landlord (including signed landlord certification form).

Source: https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/OCHCO/documents/20-08cpdn.pdf

https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/CPD/documents/CPD-COVID-19-Waiver-3-Final-Clean.pdf

https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/Availability-of-Waivers-of-CPD-Grant- Program-and-Consolidated-Plan-Requirements-to-Prevent-the-Spread-of-COVID-19-and-

Mitigate- Economic-Impacts-Caused-by-COVID-19.pdf

http://www.meeting-support.com/downloads/633932/23596/COVID-19%20Webinar%20(1).pdf

Attachment 7

CDBG-CV SPECIAL CONDITIONS & WAIVERS

Federal Register Volume 85, Number 162, Notices posted Thursday, August 20, 2020, Page 51457-51475 (Notice) detail the CDBG-CV requirements including their relation to CDBG funds. Below represents a synopsis. A full account can be found at https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/6090/cdbgcv-covid19-faqs/

- I. These Section III provisions of the Notice apply to the use of fiscal year 2019 and 2020 CDBG funds for activities to prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus; these provisions shall also apply to the use of Section 108 guaranteed loan funds when they are used together with fiscal year 2019 and 2020 CDBG funds for activities to prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus.
 - a. Where these paragraphs refer to CDBG-CV funds, they apply equally to fiscal years 2019 and 2020 CDBG grants.
 - b. III.B.5.(d)(i) Use of Urgent Need National Objective.
 - c. III.B.5. (d)(ii) Modification of Location-Based Presumption of LMI Benefit for Job Creation and Retention National Objective Criteria.
 - d. III.B.5.(d)(iii) LMI Job Creation and Retention Records.
 - e. III.B.5. (e)(i) Elimination of Aggregate Public Benefit Test.
 - f. III. B.5.(e)(ii) Modification of Individual Public Benefit Standards.
 - g. III.B.5. (f)(i) Extension of Emergency Payments.
 - h. III.B.5.(f)(ii) Opportunity Zones and Related Flexibilities for Economic Development.
 - i. III.B.5. (f)(iii) Public Services Cap.
 - j. III.B.5. (f)(iv) Other Public Services Considerations.
 - k. III.B.5. (f)(v) Clarification on Application of Cost Principles.
 - I. III.B.6. (d)(iii) Clarifying note on emergency environmental review procedures.
 - m. III.B.9. Duplication of Benefits (applies for programs and activities with annual formula CDBG funds when the grantee uses these funds to carry out programs to respond to losses caused by disasters and emergencies).
 - n. III.B.10. Citizenship Requirements.
- II. Waivers and alternative requirements and other provisions in the following paragraphs of Section IIII of the Notice do not apply to fiscal year 2019 CDBG Grants and fiscal year 2020 CDBG grants:
 - a. III.A. Allocations of CDBG-CV Funds
 - b. III.B. I. General Grant Requirements
 - c. III.B.2. Responsible Use of CARES Act Funds
 - d. III B.3. Overview of Process to Receive CDBG-CV Grants
 - e. III.B.4. (b) CDBG-CV Application Content and Submission
 - f. III.B.5. (a) Use of Funds for CARES Act Purposes
 - g. III.B.5. (b) Reimbursements

- h. III.B.5. (c) Terms and Conditions Made Applicable by the CARES Act
- i. III.B.5. (d)(iv) Overall Benefit to LMI Persons.
- j. III.B.6. (a) Program Income
- k. III.B.6. (b) Rules Applicable to State CDBG-CV Grants
- I. III.B.6. (c) Rules for Entitlements, Insular Areas, and Non-entitlement Hawaii Counties
- m. III.B.6. (d)(ii) Clarifying note on the process for environmental release of funds when a state carries out activities directly.
- n. III.B.6. (e) Compliance with Labor Laws
- o. III.B.6. (t) Relationship to Section I 08 Loan Guarantees
- p. III.B.7. Period of Performance, Timeliness, and Closeout
- q. III.B.8. Reporting

Source: https://www.govinfo.gov/app/details/FR-2020-08-20/2020-18242

https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/6090/cdbgcv-covid19-faqs/